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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REFORT

The Members of
MILKAMAL FOUNIDATION

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NILKAMAL FOUNDATION (a Company
not for Profit and Limited by Shares registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act 2013), which
comprises Balance Sheet ag at 31st March, 2023, the Statement of Income and Expenditure Account
and Cash Flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2023, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

{a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 315t March 2023

() T the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the Loss for the year ended on that date.

() In the case of Cash Flow Staternent, of its Cash flow during the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinjon

We conducted our audit fn accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ Section of our Report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Fthics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘TCAL”Y fogether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and Auditors report thereon (Other Information’)
The Company’s management and Board of Divectors are responsible for the other information. The
ather information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but doses not
include the financial statements and auditor’s report theron.

Our Opinion on the financial statements does not cover the information and we do not express any
form of agsurance or conclusions thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
infarmation and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or other wise appears to be materially
ated. 1f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
dement of the other information, we ave required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
as regard.




Managements * Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors iIs responsible for the matters stated In Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2004, This
responsibility also  includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies ; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent ; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating eflfectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and the Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless managemernt either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of the financial statemeuts

Qur objective are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from materfal misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to jssue an auditors report
that incltude our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a malerial misstatement when it
exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
agpregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decision of users taken on the
basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ervor,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of interral control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

s Tvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern. basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going,
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors report to the related disclosures conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

s Rvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial stateroents, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
meope and timing of the audit and significant audit (indings, including any significant deficiencies in
peiagnal control that we identify during an audit.
lso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

it ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
whips and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
applicable, related safeguards.




From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation. precludes public be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably bhe expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of  such
comununication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. The Companies ( Auditor’s Report) Order,2020 (‘the CARO 2020 Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of the Section 143(11) of the Act, is not applicable to the Company.

2. As required by Section 143(2) of the Act, we report that :

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of audit .

b, In our opinion proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as appears from our examination of those books .

¢. The Balance Sheet, Staternent of Income and Expenditure Account, Cash Flow Statement and other
notes thereon dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts,

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards referred to
in the Section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 and read with Rule No 7 of the Companies
Accounting Rules 2014

On the basls of representations received from the directors as on Mar 31, 2023 and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on Mar 31,2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

. With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2074, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given fo us:

1.As per the information and explanations given to us there are no pending litigations other than
those disclosed in the financial statements,

it In the opinion of the company no provision is required under any law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any , on long term contracts including derivative contracts,

iii There are no amounts to be fransferred to Investor Education & Protection Fund during the
year.

For M/s Sheth Doctor and Associates

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Regn No. 124822W)

LN %O 23036056 BGOUW9662
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Tareshs Boctor

Proprictor

Membership No, 036056

Mumbai.
Date : 18/5/2023 .




NILKAMAL FOUNDATION

BALANCE SHEET

As AT 31st MARCH, 2023

{Rupees biv Lakhs)

Note As af As at
31t March, 2023 Fist Miarch, 2022
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 1 7.03 165,75
Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash equivalents 2 - 60.00
Other Current Assets 3 3.97 5.09
TOQTAL ASSETS 11,00 230.84
EQUITY AND LIABILIVIES
EQULITY
Equity Share Capital 4 0.01 0.01
Other Equity 5 10.81 230.65
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other Payables 6 0.18 0.18
Other current Liabilities 7 -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABIUTIES 11.08 230.84
Basis of Preparation, measurement 12

and significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

FOR SHETH DOCTOR & ASSOCIATES
Firm Registeration No, 0124822W

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Nifkamal Foundation

CiN ¢ U74999MH2016NPL284394

Chartered Rccountants
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Parestrs. Doctor /,»

Proprietor
Membership No. 36056

Vamanrai V. Parekp s
Director 5% - Director
DIN G 00037519 DIN : 00035747

Place : Mumbai
Date: 18th May 2023
UDIN 1 230360568GQOUWIE62

.
e,




NILKAMAL FOUNDATION

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2023

___(Bupees in Jakhs)

Note Year Ended Year Ended
315t March, 2023 d1st Winreh, 2022

INCCVIEE
“Donation Recaived 8 25.00 100.00
Other Income 9 2,49 27.29
TOTAL INCOME 27.49 127.29
EXPENDITURE
Program Expense 10 247.00 421.00
Other Expense 11 0.33 0.28
TOTAL EXRENSES 247,33 421,28
Eucess / {Shortfal]) of income over expenditure [A] -219.84 Z394.00

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR [B] -

TOTAL COMPREMENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR [A-B] -219.84 «294,00

Farnings/ {Loss) per equity shave
Basic & Diluted{ In Rupees ) -2,19,842.86 -2,93,998.44
{Face Value of Rs. 10 each)

Basis of preparation, measurement

) 12
and sighificant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financlal siatements

As per our teport of even date

FOR SHETH DOCTOR & ASSCUATES For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm Registeration No, 0124822W Nilkamal Foundation
Charlered Accountants CIN  U74999MH2016NPL284394
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Vamanrai V. Parekh 77 e Sharad V. Parekh y
Proprietor Diregtor Director ’
fernbership No. 36056 . DIN £ 00037518 DIN : Q0035747

Place : Mumbai
Date: 18th May 2023
UDIN ¢ 23036056BGQOUWIE62




NILKAMAL FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2023

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended
3ist March, 2023 | 3st March, 2022

A, CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITITES:
Excess/ (Shortfall) of income over expenditure -219.84 ~294.00

Adjustments for:
Interest Income -2.49 -27.29

Changes in Working Capital

Increse/ (Decrase) in current assets - 242,31
Increse/ (Decrase) in current liabilities - -100.56
Increse/ {Decrase) in other bank balances 60.00 290.00
Direct Taxes Paid 1.04 -1.34
Net cash generated from/ (used In) operating activities - [A] 161,29 109.12

8. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES - [B] -
Interest Received 2.56 27.57
2.56 27.57

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid

Net cash {used in)/ generated frorn financing activiiies - {C} - -

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash And Cash equivalents - [A+ B+ (] <158.72 136.69
AbD: Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 165.75% 29.06
Cash And Cash equivalents at the end of the year 7.03 165.75

Note: The above Staterment of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect
method as set out In the Ind AS 7. ‘Statement of Cash Flows'

The accompanying notes are an fntegral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

FOR SHETH DOCTOR & ASSOCIATES Eor and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm Registeration No. 0124822W Nilkamal Foundation
Chartered Accountants CIN ¢ U74999MH2016NPL2843S4
B 7 ‘1 {“ & j . yy.
v BERVATE § e 20 5 AAAAAN
,«M“:, v o {5({; - MW,««?‘; A ij /,/'“
Pgi Gsh S, Ctor Director W,;sz” Diretior
Proprietor Vamanrai V, Parekh o #7 Sharad V. Parekh
Mermbearship No. 36056 DIN £ 00037519 DIN £ 00035747

Place : Mumbai

Pate: 18th May 2023 @.\QR & 45;2,‘,

LIDIN 1 23036036BGQOUWIEE2 {7 o
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NILKAMAL FOUNDATION

{Rupees in Lakhs)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2023

1] CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As ot As at
315t March, 2023 X1st March, 2022

Balances with banks

6.86 165.59
Cash On hand 0,16 0.16
7.03 165.75
‘)}.) BAMK BALANCE OFHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
As at As at

315t March, 2023 st March, 2022

Bank Deposits having original maturity period 3-12 Months 60.00
- 60.00

3} OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

As at As at
3ast March, 2023 35t Maveh, 2022

interast Receivable 0.08
Income Tox Paid 3.97 5,01
Bank Deposit having Original maturity more than 12 months

3.97 5.09

4} EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

As at As at
315t Miarch, 2023 345t March, 2022

Authorised 0.01 0,04
100 equity shares of Rs, 10 cach

tssund, subscribed and fully paid up 0.01. 0.01
100 equity shares of Rs. 10 each

0.01 0,01

a) Reconciliation of the number of shares
As at As at
I35t Marck, 2023 st Mavch, 2023

:!?';w_ity shiares No. of Shares | Amount No. of Shares Amount
Batance at the beginning of the year 100 0.0 100 0.0%
Add / {Less):
i%’;’aiance ot the and of the year 100 0.04 100 0.01

1) Rights, preference and restrictions attached to the shares

The company has enly one class of equity shares having a par value Rs, 10 per share. Fach shareholder is eligible for one
vote per share held. As the Company 15 a private company limited by shares of formed under section 8 of the Companies
Act, 2013 , no dividend is 1o be proposed and paid to the shareholders. In the avent of winding up or dissolution of the
corpany , after the satisfaction of all its debts and liabilities , any property whatsover shall be given or transfaerad Lo some
other institution(s) having obect simiter to the objects of the Company, o he determined by the members of the company
at or before the time of dissolution or in default thereof by the High Court.

¢} Shares heid by holding company and subsidiary of holding company In aggrepgaie

As at As at
245t March, 2023 23st Mayely, 2022

Eouity shares of 18,10 each held by

99 shores are held by Nitkmal Limited, the holding cormpany * 990.00 980.00
11 share is held by Nilkamal Bitos Storage Sysytem Private Limited * . 10.00
h share is held by Cambro Nilkamal Private Limited ' ’ 10.00 10.00




= Nilkarmal Limited has received order from the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench and Hon'ble
Nationat Company Low Tribunal, Mumbai Bench on 12th Aprif, 2023 and 15th March, 2023 respectively, approving the
Scheme of Amalgamation of Nilkamal Storage Systems Private Limited (NSSPL) with the Nitkamal Limited and their
respective shareholders. The Appointed Date for the amalgamation is 15t October, 2022, Hence From 1st October 22 1

Shares held by Nilkamal storage systems Pvt Limited has been considered as held by Nitkamal Limied,

d} Details of equity shares beld by shareholders holding more than
5% of the aggregate shoras in the company

As at

As at

315t Wiarch, 2023

31st March, 2022

Nurber of shares of 1Rg, 10 each held by:

Nitkarnal Limited, the holding company
% of holding

990.00
99%

980.00
98%

5] OTHER EQUITY

Retained Earnings

fetained Barnings

As at st April, 2022
ixcess of Income over expenditure Tor the year

230.65
-219.84

524.65
-294.00

As @t 3Lst March, 2022

10.81

230.65

6] OTHER PAYABLES

As at

As at

315t March, 2023

Fist Miarch, 2022

Trade Payables

.18

0.18

0.18

0.18

2021-22

Quistanding for following peviods from due date of payment

Particulars Unhilled Not due <1 Year

1-2 years

23 years

> 3 years

Total

isputed MSME

‘Lmdxspuwd Cthers 0.18

0.18

Disputed dues - MSME

sputed dues - Others

2020-21

Quistanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Unbilled Not due < 1 Year

12 yests

2.3 years

=4 years

Total

Undispuled MSME

Undisputed Others (.18 -

0.18

Disputed dues - MSME

Disputed dues - Others

As at

Ag at

415t March, 2023

315t March, 2022

Act, 2006

interest due thereon
the amount day
interest has not been paid)

accounting year,

Principal outstanding of amount payable as on 31st March 2016 relating to
suppliers registered as Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Amaunt of interest paid alongwith the amount of payments made beyond
Amount of interest due and payable (where the principal is already paid but

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpald at the end of each

71 OTHER CURRENT LIABHTIES

As at

As at

41s¢ Warch, 2023

315t March, 2022

Fund held in corpus donation
Less : Spend for Specific Purpose

25.00
-25.00

100.00
-100.00
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B] DONATIONS RECEIVED

For the perlod ended

For the period ended

318t Maveh, 2023 st March, 2022

Voluntary Contributions 25.00 100.00
{#rom holding Company & Associates - Note No. 4{b}}
25.00 100.00
9] OTHER INCOME

For the period ended | For the peried ended

Aast March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Interest Received - FD 1.79 26,11
Interest Recelved - S8 0.59 1.07
Interest received on Income Tax refund 010 0.10
2.49 27,29

10} PROGRAM EXPENSES

For the period ended

For the period ended

3ist March, 2023 315t March, 2022
Donations Paid 247,00 421.00
247,00 421,00

13] OTHER EXPENSLS

For the period ended

For the perlod ended

3ist Mavch, 2023 Fist March, 2022
Bank Charges 0.00 0.01
ROC 'eps 0.14 0,08
AudH Fees 0.18 018
Other expense 0.00
Professional Fees Q.02 0.02
0.33 0.28




NILKAMAL FOUNDATION

12, NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

1.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Nitkamal Foundation (“The Company”), a not for profit company, within the meaning of
section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 was incorporated in India on August 3, 2016, Pursuant
to the enactment of Companies Act, 2013 and section 135 of The Companies Act, 2013, the
Company as an implementing agency, would carry out Corporate Social Responsibility {‘CSR’)
activities as per CSR policy adopted by Nilkamal Limited and its group companies in line with
schedule Vi of The Companies Act, 2013. The Company would primarily focus on CSR activities
in undertaking programs/projects majority in the field of education, health, and
environmental sustainability, Relief and Rehabilitation. However, the company shall also
undertake any the activities as suggested under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
which are also mentioned in the main object clause of the Memorandum of Association of the

company, as and when the Company feels it necessary to expand.

BASIS OF PREPARATION, MEASUREMENT AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MEASUREMENT
a) BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standard [herelnafter referved to as the ‘Ind AS’] as notified by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the
Companies [Indian Accounting Standards] Rules, 2015 that are notified and other
relevant provisions of the Act.
The financial statements have heen prepared on the accrual and going concern basis.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the division H-ind AS
Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013, The Company has ascertained its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non current classification of assets

and liabilities.

b} BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
These financial statements are praepared upder the historical cost convention unless

otherwise indicated.




2.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a.

ks,

[+

R

Revenue Recognition

)

Voluntary Contribution:

Contributions received other than for corpus donations are recognized as income
in the year of receipt.

Contributions received as corpus donations with future commitment for CSR
expenses, are credited to ‘Fund held in corpus donation’ in the Balance sheet
under the head of other current liabilities. and will be disbursed as per the

direction of the donor for carrying out the CSR activities of the Company.

1) Interest Income on Fixed Deposits are accounted on accrual basis.

Expenses

All expenses are accounted for on accrual basis and provision is made for all

known losses and labilities,

Program Expenses

The said expenses represents various expenditure incurred by the company on
activities and projects covered by “Corporate Social Responsibility “ (USR) as
specified under Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013. Expenditure on projects
are written off in the respective year of it's spending irrespective of s stage of

completion. The same is accounted for as & when paid.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net excess/ (shortfall) for the
period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented i3
adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential
equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to eguity

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the

period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.




e.

f.

3. CONTINGENT LIABLITY AT YEAR END : NIL

Cash And Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, cash in bank and deposits with

banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances { with an original maturity of

three months or less from the date of acquisition ) highly liquid investments that

are readily convertibles into known amounts of cash and which are subject to

insignificant risk of changes in value.

fncome Tax

The company has been granted exemption from Income tax under section 12A

read with section 12AA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 .

4. i accordance with direction received from the Holding Company, during the year Company

has transferred sum of Rs100 lakhs received in eatlier years towards corpus donation to

Income & Expenditure account.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Enterprises exercising control

a.

ir.

Holding Company:

Nitkamal Limited

Othier refated parties with whom transactions have taken place:

NIL

Bisclosure of transactions hetween the campany and related parties and the status of

outstanding balance as in 31 March, 2023

&y

Name of The Party

Holding Company
Nilkamal Limited

Donations received

Corpus Fund Transfer

Fund Held in Corpus Donation
Purchase for Program

Year ended Year ended

31 March, 315 March,

2023 (Rs. in 2022 {Rs. iIn
Lacs} Lacs)

s, 100.00




6. FARNINGS PER SHARE HAS BEEN COMPUTED AS UNDER
Year fnded 31 Year Ended 315

March, 2043 March, 2022
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Fxcess/ (Shortfall) of income over expenditure for the year 219.84 lacs {294.00 lacs)
Weighted average number of equity share outstanding 100 100
Farnings per share (Rs.) ~ basic and diluted (face value of (-)219842 .86 (~)293998 .44
Rs 10 per share)
As per our report of even date
FOR SHETH DOCTOR & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No. 0124822W Nilkamal Foundation
Chartered Accountants CIN - U74999MH2016NPL284394
A S .«4:%; / y : Y
e e Vi Pt G At Al
Paresi’s. Doctor \/amanra;g;;;;\j:w%@a“i%‘i&;,f ’ Sharad V. Parekh ///
Proprietor Director Director /
Mermbership No, 36056 DIN- 00037515 DIN-0CO35747

Place . Mumbai
Date: 18" May 2023
UDIN @ 23036056BGQOUWI662
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AGE 1
NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE
Manager’s Report

The manager submits his report and accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023.
Results and dividend
The profit for the year amounted to AED 2,790,325/-,

To conserve the financial resources of the company, no dividend is proposed by the director
for the year.

Review of the business

The establishment is registered to carry out activity of general trading / import and export.
During the year, the establishment has mainly traded in various plastic crates, pallets, material
handling equipment, racking systems, bins, hospitality products and related products.

Events since the end of the year

There were no significant events, which have occurred sinee the year-end that materially affect
the establishment,

Shareholder and its interest

The sole shareholder, at 31 March 2023 and its interest, as of that date, in the share capital of
the establishment, was as follows;

Country of
Name of the shareholder incorporation No. of share  AED
Nilkamal Limited India 1 185,000

(Represented by Mr. Saumil Mukund Mehta)
Auditors

A resolution to re-appoint K81 Shah & Associates as auditors and fix their remuneration
will be put to the board of directors at the annual general meeting.

/)

LT LA b AJ,{X/

Mr. Saumil Mukund Mehia
Manager
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PAGE 2
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Shareholder of
NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NILKAMAL CRATLES & BINS FZE (the
“establishment™), which comprises of the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and explanatoty notes.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of the
establishment as of 31 March 2023 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Establishment in accordance with the
International Bthics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA
Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
UAE, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion,

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the manager’s report,
which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report. The other information does not include the

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our apinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 1f, based
on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we concluded that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are {ree from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Shareholder of
NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (contd.)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the Financial Statements
(contd.)

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the establishment’s ability (o
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the establishment or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the establishment’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Respousibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaraniee that an audit conducted in
accordance with [SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and ave considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statcments.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o traud
or etror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting a material
misstaterent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposc of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the establishment’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the approptiateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and.
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the establishment’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the [inancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
madify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the establishment to cease to continue
as a going conceri.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achicves fair presentation.

We communicate with Those Charged with Governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
conirol that we identify during our audil,

For KSI Shah & Associates
Dubai, U.AF. !
Signed by:

Sonal P, Shah (Registration No. 123)

28 April 2023



NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE

Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2023

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets

Current assets
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Prepayments

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Accumulated profits

Total equity

Non-current liability
Staff end of service gratuity

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Dividend payable

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial stafements.

Notes

oo~

10
11

12
16

The Independent Auditors’ Report is set forth on pages 2 to 3.

Approved by the board of directors on 28" April 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

For NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE

el
Mr. Saumil Mukund Mchta
Manager
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2023 2022
AED ALD
124,831 111,160

3,949,181 2132410
3,383,134 5.359.130

68,957 71,248
4228534 2,516,057

11,629.806  8.078.845

11,754,637  B120,005
185,000

92,500

8,300,978

8 578,478
138,144 326,085
3,038,015 1,575,767
- 500,000
3,038,015 2,075,767
11,754,637 8,190,005




NILIKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Jor the year ended 31 Marcl 2023

Notes
Sales 16
Cost of sales 13
Gross profit
Expenses 14
Profit from operating activities fox the year
Other income 15

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
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2023 2822

AED ALD
19,987,728 14,128,212
(14,683.362) (10,489,325
5,304,367 3,638,887

(2,612.110)

(2.202. 5423

2,692,257 1,436,348

98,068 61315
2,790,325 1,497,868
2,790,325 L AYT BO0

The accompanying notes 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.



NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE

Statement of Changes in Equity
Sor tlie year ended 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2021
Profit for the year
Dividend

As at 31 March 2022
Profit for the year

As at 31 March 2023

The accompanying notes 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Share Statutory  Accumulated

capital reserve profits Toral

AED AED AED ALD

185,000 92,500 4,512,793 4,796,293
- - 1,497,860 1,497,860
- - (500,000) (500,000)

185,000 92,560 5,510,653 5,788,143
- - 2,790,325 2,790,325

185,000 92,500 8,300,978 8,578,478




MNILEKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE

Statement of Cash Flows
Jorthe year ended 31 March 2023

Cash flows froy_operating activities
Profit for the year

Adjustment for:

Profit on sale of tixed assets

Provision for staff end of service gratuity
Depreciation

Operating profit before working eapital changes
Changes in inventories

Changes in trade and other receivables
Changes in prepayments

Changes in trade and other payables

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets

Proceeds on sale of fixed assets

Changes in margin accouit

Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash aud cash equivalents at end of the ycar

Notes

17
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2023 2022

AED AED
2,790,325 1.497.860
(6,973) .
(187,941) 26.475
27,777 37.88)
2,623,188 1,362,216
(1,816,771) 609,633
(24,005)  (493,169)
2,291 7.175
962251 _ (446,430)
1,746,954 1,239,425
(44,477) (2.85%)
10,000 .
1.396.005 (1,396,005
1,361,528 (1.398,860)
3,108,482  (159,435)
1,120,052 1279487
_ 4,228,534 1268087

The accompanying noftes 1 1o 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE
(Incorporated in the Ajman Free Zone, Emirate of Ajman, U.A.E.)
(Registration No, 26166)

Notes to the Financial Statements
Sor thie year ended 31 March 2023

1.
a)

b)

b)

Legal status and business activity

NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE (“The Establishment”) is a TIree Zone
Establishment registered with the Ajman Free Zone, Ajman, U.A.L. on 09 August
2003 under the general trading license No. 1252,

The establishment is registered to carry out activity of general trading / import and
export. During the year, the establishment has mainly traded in various plastic crates,
pallets, material handling equipment, racking systems, bins and related products.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued or adopted by the International Accounting Standards
Board (JASB) and which are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022 and the implementing rules and regulations of Ajman Free Zone.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
regatdless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
establishment takes into account the characteristics of the asset or Hability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in U.A.E. Dirhams, which is the
establishment’s functional and presentation currency.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires
management to make judgments, cstimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.
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NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

Judements made in applying accounting policies

The significant judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statemients are as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of goods- local gnd export

Timing for transfer of control of goods:

In case of performance obligation satisfied at point in time, the control of goods is
transferred, when physical delivery of the goods to the agreed location has
occurred, as a result, the establishment has a present right to payment and retains
none of the significant risks and rewards of the goods.

Financing components

The establishment does not expect to have any contracts where the period between
the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the
customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the establishment does not adjust
any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Determining the transaction price:

The establishment’s revenue from sale of goods is derived from fixed price
contracts with customers and therefore the amount of revenue to be carned from
each contract is determined by reference to those fixed prices. Based on the
historical performance of the establishment, it is highly probable that there will not
be reversal of previously recognized revenue on account of the return of goods or
volume rebates.

Allocating the transaction prices:

There is a fixed unit price for each item sold to the customer. Therefore, there is no
judgment involved in allocating the contract price to each unit ordered in contracts
with customers. Where a customer orders more than one item, the establishment is
able to determine the split of the total contract price between each item by
reference to each product’s standalone selling prices (all product lines are capable
of being, and are, sold separately).

Provision of rights to return goods, volume rebates and_other similar obligations:

The establishment reviews its cstimate of expected returns at each reporting date
on basis of the historical data for the returns, rebates and other similar obligations
and updates the amounts of the asset and liability accordingly.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, management conducts an assessment of fixed assels to
determine whether there are any indications that they may be impaired. In the
absence of such indications, no fusther action is taken. If such indications do exist,
an analysis of each asset is undertaken to determine its net recoverable amount and,
if this is below its carrying amount, a provision is made.
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NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS I'ZE

Notes to the Financial Statements
Sor the year ended 31 March 2023

da,

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty and assumptions at the reporting date, that have significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

Residual values of fixed assets

Residual values are assumed to be zero unless a refiable estimate of the current value
can be obtained for similar assets of ages and conditions that are reasonably expected
to exist at the end of the asscts® estimated useful lives.

Estimated useful life of fixed ussets

Management determines the estimated useful lives and depreciation charge for its
fixed assets at the time of addition of the assets and is reviewed on annual basis.

Inventory provision

Management regularly undertakes a review of the establishment’s inventory, in order
to assess the likely realization proceeds, taking in account purchase and replacement
prices, age, likely obsolescence, the rate at which goods are being sold and the physical
damage. Based on the assessment assumptions are made as to the level of provisioning
required.

Staff end-of-service gratuity

The establishment computes the provision for the liability to staff end-of-service
gratuity assuming that all employees were to leave as of the reporting date. The
management is of the opinion that no significant difference would have arisen had the
liability been calculated on an actuarial basis as salary inflation and discount rates are
likely to have approximately cqual and opposite effects.

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowance for financial assets is based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The establishinent uses judgment in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting
Standards

New and revised International Financial Reporting Standards and amendments

The following International Financial Reporting Standards, amendments thereto and
interpretations issued by 1ASB that became effective for the current reporting period:
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NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

b)

New and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

¢ Amendments to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended
Use.

e Amendments to IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to IFRS 3 - References to the Conceptual
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018 — 2020 — Amendments to [FRS 1,
IFRS 9, IFRS 16 Leases and IAS 41,

During the current year, the management has adopted the above standards and
amendments to the extent applicable to them from their effective dates.

These amendments have no significant impact on the amounts reported in these
financial statements. Their adoption has resulted in presentation and disclosure
changes only.

International Financial Reporting Standards issued but not effective

Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current - The
cffective date of the amendments is set for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 — Disclosure of accounting
policies - The effective date of the amendments is set for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023.

Amendments to IAS 8 - Definition of accounting estimates — The cffective date of the
amendments is set for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Amendments to IAS 12 - Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a
single transaction — The effective date of the amendments is set for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

IFRS17 - Insurance Contracts and amendments to IFRS 17- The effective date of the
standard is set for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Amendments to IAS 1 - Non-current liabilities with Covenants - The effective date of
the amendments is set for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024,

Amendments to IFRS 16 - Liability in a sale and leaseback - The effective date of the
amendments is set for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture — The effective date of the amendments is not
yet stated.

The cstablishment has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or
amendnient that has been issued but is not yet effective.
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NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE

Notes to the Financial Statements
Sfor the year ended 31 March 2023

N

b)

—~
el
P~
o

.

Significant accounting policies:
Depreciation of fixed assets

The cost of fixed assets is depreciated by equal annual instalments over their estimated
useful lives as under:

Furniture and office equipiment 3 - 10 years
Vehicles 8 years

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
method and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of
economic benefits from these assets.

Depreciation on addition is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the month of addition
and on disposal to and including the month of disposal of the asset.

Financial instruments
Recognition and Initial measuremen!

The establishment recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and
liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities, other than
those carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), are added to the fair value
on initial recognition.

Classification and subsequent measurement of. finuncial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified as follows:

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

The establishment’s financial assets at amortised cost include trade and other
receivables and cash and bank balances. Due to the short term nature of these financial
assets, their carrying amounts are considered to be the same as their fair value.

Classification and subsequent measurement of, financial liabilities

The establishment’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables. The carrying
amounts of these financial liabilities are consideted as to be the same as their fair
values, due to their short term nature.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original lability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit o loss.
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NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS ¥ZE

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2023

v,

e)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The establishment recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the establishment expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

Expected credit losses are recognized in two stages.

& For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, expected credit losses are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months.

B Tor those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default.

For trade receivables, the establishment applies a simplified approach in calculating
expected credit losses, The establishment does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit losses at each reporting date.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost using the weighted average method or net
realizable value,

Cost comprises invoice value plus applicable direct costs such as freight and custom
duty.

Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price less further cost expected to be
incurred for disposal.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into U.A.E. Dirhams at the rate of
exchange ruling on the date of the transaction. Assets and liabitities expressed in
foreign currencies are translated into U.A.E. Dirhams at the rate of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet date. Resulting gain or loss is taken to the Statement of
comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The establishment assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a
non-financial asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the establishment estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount.
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NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2023

£)

h)

D

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Where the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating units exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the Statement of
comprehensive income in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

Value Added Tax (VAT)

The revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of value-added tax (VAT). In case
Input VAT paid to the supplier of asset or expense is not recoverable from the Federal
Tax Authority, it is disclosed as part of asset acquired or expense incurred.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of VAT receivable or
payable. The net amount of VAT recoverable from or VAT payable to FTA is
disclosed as other payable or other receivable under current liabilities or current assets
respectively in the statement of financial position.

Provision

Provisions are recognized when the establishment has a legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to scttle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, using a rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the obligation,

Staff end of service benefits

Provision is made for end-of-service gratuity payable to the staff, subject to the
completion of a minimum service period, at the reporting date in accordance with the
local labour laws.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Short term leases

The establishment applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term
leases of office premises and staff accommodations (i.c., those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). Lease payments on short-term leases assets are recognized as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZL

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

k)

m)

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods

The cstablishment has mainly taded in plastic crates, pallets, material handling
equipment, racking systems, bins, hospitality products and related products.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at a point in time when control of the goods
has transferred to the customer. This is gencrally when the goods are delivered to the
customers and have been accepted by the customers at their premises and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect customer’s acceptance of the goods. Delivery
occurs when the goods have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer or the establishment has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

The amount of revenue is shown as net of discounts, returns, other similar obligations
and VAT as per the performance obligations determined as per the provisions of the
contracts with customers.

ash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement comprise of cash
and cheques on hand, bank balance in current accounts, deposits [iee of encumbrance
with a maturity date of three months or less from the date of deposit and highly liquid
investments with a maturity date of three months or less from the date of investment.

Dividend

Dividend is paid out of accumulated profits, when declared. Dividend declared for the
year but not paid is disclosed under current liabilities

Furniture
. and office
Fixed assets equipitent Velicles Total

AED AED ALD

Cost
Asat 01.04.2022 320,460 251,134 571,594
Additions during the year 44,477 - 44,477
Disposal during the year (34,500) (50,592) (85,092)
As at 31.03.2023 330,437 200,542 530,979
Depreciation
As at 01.04,2022 226,310 234,124 460,434
Charge for the year 23,325 4,452 27,777
Related to disposal (34,002 {48,061 (82,063)
As at 31.03.2023 215,633 190,515 406,148
Net book value
As at 31.03.2023 114,804
Asat 31.03.2022 94 150

{0 the opinion of the managenment, there was no impaivment in respect of the above fived assels. Hence
the carrying values of the fixed assets as at 31 Maich 2023 approximates to their net book values.
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NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE

Notes to the Financial Statements
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2023

2023 2022
AED ALD
7. Inventories
Inventories 2,822,930 2,436,446
Provision for slow moving inventories (378,000} (378,000
2,444,930 2,058,446
(Groods in transit 1.504,251 73,9064

3,949,181 2.

18

8. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables 3,290,397 3,110,005
Advance o suppliers 8,213 155,485
Staff advance : - 5.000
Other receivable - 1,523
Deposits 84,524 §7.025

3,383,134 3,359,130

0. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 640 7,578

Bank balances in:

Current accounts 4,227,894 1,112474

Margin accounts (refer note 20) - 1,396,003
4,228,534

10, Share capital

Aunthorized, issued and paid up:
{ share of AED 185,000/ 185,000 188000

11, Statufory reserve

As required by Article 103 of the U.AE. Commercial Companies Law No. 2 of 2015,
statutory reserve is created by allocating 10% of the net profit of the establishment.
The establishment has discontinued such annual transfers as this reserve (otals 50% of
the paid up share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution cexcept as
provided in the Federal Law.

2023 2022
AED ALD
12.  Trade and other payables
Trade payables (refer note 16) 2,349,914 1,339,745
Advance from customers 609,159 {15,910
Accruals 23,644 3R AA3
Other payable 55,298 81.059

3,038,015 1,578,767




NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE

Notes to the Financial Statements
Sfor the year ended 31 March 2023

13.

14.

i5.

16.

Cost of sales

[nventories at beginning of the year
Purchases (refer note 16)

Provision for slow moving inventories
Other direct costs

Inventories at the end of the year

Expenses

Manager’s remuneration (refer note 16)
Staff salaries and benefits

Rent

Other administration expenses

Bad debts written off

Depreciation (refer note 6)

Other income
FExchange gain

Profit on sale of fixed assets
Miscellaneous income

Related party transactions
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2023
ALD
2,436,446 2,464.910
13,269,444 8,871,908
- 178,000
1,800,402  1.410.893
(2.822.930)
14,683,362
344,232 312,936
1,042,192 TUT AT
308,895 291,755
884,439 808,345
4,575 33,948
27,777 37.881
2,612,110 22025

73,095
6,973
18,000

For the purpose of this financial statement, parties are considered to be related to the
establishment, if the establishment has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
party or exercise significant influence over the party in making that party’s financial
and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the establishment and the party are
subject to common control or common significant influence. Related party may be

individuals or other entities.

The nature and amount of significant transactions during the year are as under:

Key
Managerial Parent Common
Personnel contpany managenient Total
2023 2023 control 2023
AEDR AED AED AED
Sales - 19,688 - 19,688
Purchases - 3,374,764 1,569,272 4,944,036
(refer note 13}
Manager’s 344,232 344,232

remuneration
(refer note 14)

Toral
2032

3,273,695

312936
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Related party transactions (continued)

At the reporting date, balances with related parties were as follows:

Common
management Parent
control COpany Toral Total
2023 2023 2023 2022

Included in current liabilities:
Trade payables frefer note 12) 362,439 119,613 482,052 322,232
-~ RO0.000

Dividend payable - -
2023 20622
: AED ALD
17.  Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 640 7,578
Bank balances in:
Current accounts 4,227,894

4,228,534

18.  Financial instruments: Credit, interest rate, liquidity risk and
exchange rate risk exposures

The establishment has exposute to the following risks from its use financial
instruments:

a) Credit risk
b) Market risk
¢) Liquidity risk

a) Credit risk

Financial assets, which potentially expose the establishment to concentrations of credit
risk, comprise principally of trade and other receivables and bank balances.

Trade receivables
As at 31 March 2023, the establishment’s maximum exposure to credit risk from trade
receivables situated within U ALE. amounted to AED 624,404/~ due from one customer

(previous year AED 309,771/~ due from one cusiomer).

‘There are no significant concentrations of credit risk from trade receivables situated
outside U.A.E. and outside the industry in which the establishiment operates.

Bank balunces

The establishment’s bank balances in current and margin accounts are placed with high
credit quality financial institutions.
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b)

¢)

19.

20.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash tlows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity prices risk, which will affect the establishment’s income or the value of
its holding of financial instruments.

Tnterest rate risk

Since the establishment does not have any deposits or borrowings, interest rate risk is
minimum,

FExchange rate risk

There are no significant exchange rate risks as substantially all financial asscts and
financial liabilities are denominated in U.A.E. Dirhams or US Dollars to which the
U.A.E. Dirham is fixed.

Liquidity risk

The following are the contractual maturitics of the establishment’s financial labilitics
as of 31 March 2023.

Carrying Payable within - Payable after

Nosi-derivative financial liabilities mneunts next 12 montis 12 osils
AER AED ALED

Stafl end of service gratuity 138,144 - 138,144
Trade and other payables:
Trade payables 2,349.914 2,349,914 -
Advance from customers 609,159 609,159 -
Accruals 23,644 23,644 -
Other payable 55,298 55,298 -

Financial instruments: Fair valaes

The fair values of the establishment’s financial assets, comprising of trade and other
receivables and bank balances and financial liabilities comprising of trade and other
payables approximate to their carrying values.

2023 2022
AED ALD

Purchase commitment

Letters of credit ® refer note 9) - 1,286,644

“ Represented letter of credit issued by the bank and against which goods were shipped by the supplier
during the year,

Comparative figures

Previous years figures have been regrouped/reclassified whevever necessary 10
conform to the presentation adopted in the current year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TOTHE SHAREHOLDERS OF NILKAMAL ESWARAN MARKETING (PVTYLTD

Heport on the Audit of the Financial Statementis

Opinton

We have audited the financial statements of Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Pv) Lid (“the Company”). shich
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of profit or Joss and
other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the vear then
ended, and notes 1o the financial statenients, including a summary of significant accounting poficies.

iy our opirdon, the accompanying fioancial statements give a rrue and fair view of the financial position of
the Cm npdm asat 31 March 2023, and of its {inancial performance and iis cash flows for the yvear then ended
in aecordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard for Sniall and Medium-Sized Entities.

Hasis for Oplaion

We conducted our audit in accordance with S Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAUSS). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Awditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finunchud
YAl on of our report, We we independent of the Company in accordance with the Cade of Fihies
S84 Sri Lanka (Code of Bthies) and we bave fulfilled our other ethical responsibifities inaccordance
wi h riz" Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
o provide a basis for our opinion.

3ther aformation

Mamagenent is vesponsible for the other infonmation. These financial statements do not comprise vther
information.

Ch upa Hon on the finaocial statements does not cover the other information and we will aol express any
form of assuranee conclusion thereon,

Hesponsibilities of Managemoent snd Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management s responsible for the preparation of financial slalements fhat give a true and {air view in
aceordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium-Sized Entities. and for suel internal
contrel as management determines 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial sistements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due (0 fraud or ervor.




R

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going congern, drsulosmg* as applicable, maters related 10 going voncern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 1w zqmdatu the Company or ¢ cease
operations or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financia al reporting process,
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonuble assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error and 10 issue an auditor's report that inclades oue
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit condueted in
accordance with SLAuSs will always detect a material misstatement when i exists. Misstatements can arise
from fravd or error and are considered material if individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expecied 1o influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

A further deseription of the auditor's responsibititics for the audit of the financial statements is located at Sri
Lanka Accownting and Auditing Standards website a hitpy//slaase.comauditing/andiorsresponsibiiiny
This deseription forms part of our auditor’s report.

Re;’;m% on Other Lega§ and Regumi‘m‘y }f%qzsiremcms

and ex ;Lmdt*um tlm were ;Lqumd im 1(1@ cmdn ;mah as iur as app LS fmm DL cxézminzﬁi@m Bropue
accounting records have been kept by the Company.

HARTERED COUNTANTS
slombo, 811 Lar ?*

o
¢
PE May 2023



SILRAMAL ESWARAN MARKETING (PVT) LTD
STATEMENT OF PROFIT QR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 Marck, 2023 2822
Notes s, 15

Revenue 8 29,620,730 2220378
Cost of sales (13,5328 838 (34,824 72y

Gross profi 16,091,891 § 7,695,058

Administrative expenses {647,685y VRG]
Distribution expenses {52573 (838335
Profit from operations G 15,191,634 15.846,354
Net fipanee income! {expense) U ARG 3UH0ETG
Prafit before tnystion 17,620,453 12,745,476
Ineome fax expense 8 (3J23.006) (3491403
Profit for the year 12,397 447 9,254,073
Other comprehensive income for e vear - -
Tatal comprehicnsive income for the vear 125074477 4,254 073
Basie enrnings per share 9 123,974 V254

The anpexed notes o the Financisl Statements form an integral part of these Pinancial Smwements.

Figures in bracker indivate deduetions.,




MILEAMAL ESWARAN MARKETING (PVT) LTD
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Axvat 31 March, 2023 2022
Notes Rs. s

Current assets

Deferred unation 10 - 381280
Hrventories i1 21720116 25.552.206
Trade and other receivables i2 8,933.261 GIRF275
<ash and cash equivalents 13 34,609.435 28,048,881
Fotal current assets 65,282,812 64,219,643
TOTAL ASSETS 65,282,812 64,219,643
EOUITY

Stated capita] 14 1060 H}()(}
Ratasined earnings 62,149,827

Total cquity 62,150,827

LiaBiLinies

Curvent Liabilities

Trade snd other pavables 15 814,166 12058076
Related purly pavables 1511 -

Current wxation £ 2.317.819 2408187

Total curvent Liabilities 3,131,985 14,366.263

TOTAL RQUITY AND LIABILITIES 65,282,812 04,288,643

Fhe annexed notes 1o the Financial Statements form an integral part of these Financial Statenients.

These Financla] Statements are in compliasce with die requivements of Companies Act No 7 of 2007,

{Sod) Biv x&\‘ﬁ Aammxgjw
Depuly égez*&\gg{?ﬁmmgm - Finance

The Board of Divectors are responsible for the preparation of these Financial Statements,
Approved and signed for and on behalf of the Boaed:

{hgd) Biyan m\%”v?w:awzimc {Sgd) Eassuwaran ? eivag %;fzgé i’i
PHrector \/ Divector N N

15 May 2033
Colombo

<



MILKAMAL ESWARAN MARKETING (PVT) LTD
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FQUITY

For the year ended 31 Murch 2033

Balance as at 1 April 2021

Total compreliensive lncome for the vear
Profit for the vear

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive ineame for the vear

Halanee as ut 31 March 2022

Balanes as at I April 2022

Total comprehiensive income for the vear

Profiy for the vear

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprebensive tncome for the year
Transactions with owaers, recorded directly in equity
Final dividend for 2022223

Total traansactions with owaers of the Company

Balance as ut 31 Mureh 2023

Stated
Capital
s,

£,006

Hetained

Earnings
Rs.

40,494,307

9,254,073

Toral

s,
$9.409, 3067

BIR073

9,284,073

22540473

1,000

0,743,360

49,753,380

1,800

44,752,380

F2.397,447

12,597,447

13,397,447

£.4000

64,149,827

&2, 150,827

The annexed potes o the Financial Statements form an tepral part of these Financial Statements.,

Fégrrex in bracket indicaiv deductions.




MILKAMAL ESWARAR MARKETING (PVTILTD

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For die peur cirded 31 Murel,

Cash flows from apoerating activities
Profit before taxation

Adjusrment for;

Provision tor slow moving invertorics

Reversal for impabnent of trade debitors

Tnterest expense

Gperating profit hefore working capital ehanges

i‘mm ellnorease) in inventostey

: @ in trade wwd otber receivibies
Dreerease i trade and other pavables
Dovrease in reluted pargy payables
Casl generated fram operations

Lurrent fux pald
Interest paid

Net casht fromy operating activities
Cash Hlows from financing setivitics

Cash flows from investing activities

Mot inerense bn cashoand cash equivalents

Cask & eash eguivaleats at the eod of the year (Note 13)

The annesed notes o the Hsancial ststements fomm an e

Fligures i brucket indivaie deduciions,

2023
s,

17620453

2422

1599766 33740041
(48,873 (161430
4117 24118
19,075.463 14,960,204

11,996,764

(4,432,094
ERIN

6,560,354

21099378

sl equivalents @ G beglining of the veur

{1, 3GELAS
I8.048,881

34,609,435

RE Qﬁfm,ﬁ‘;é\i




NILEKAMAL ESWARAN MARKETING (PRIVATE)Y LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Lo REPORTING ENTITY
L1 Dowicile and Legal Form

Nifkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Lintited Cthe Company ™) is a limited Hability company mcormporated in
and <‘,iemuu%cd in 5ti Lanka. The registered office of the Company and the principal place of business are located

at 328, Madupatha Road, Batakettera, Piliyandala,

L2 Prineipal Activities and Nature of Qperations
The principal activity of the Company is buying sad selling all Kinds of firniture and crates.

3 Parvent Entlty and Ultimate Parvent Endity
I w Company’s parent entity and oltimate pavent entity are Nilkamal Fawaran Plasties (Pvy) Listied and
Nitkamal Limited « India respectively,

1.4 Number of Employees
The nuniber of employees of the Company as at 31 Mareh 2023 are as foliow;

Company Nit (2021 - Nil)
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.0, Statement of Complingee
The Financial Statements of the Company comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or

and Other Comyprehensive Tncome, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flosws wgether
with accounting policies and Notes w the Financial Swiements,

Fhe Financial Sutemens of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Stand
for Smull and Medium Stzed - Untities (SLERS for SMEs), jssued by the Institnte of Chartered Accountants of

T ot 2007 and aoend

nri Lanka (JCASL) and comply with the reguirements oF Compatios Ac, Ne

2.2 Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and applied consistenty with no
sifjustments being made for inflationary factors affecting the Financial Staterents,

These Vinanciad Statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company would continue as a 2oing concern
tor the foreseeable funwre,

2.3 Comparative Figures
Where necessary, comparative figuses have been rearranged 1o conform with the current yoar's preseniation.

2.4 Funetounal sud Presentation Currency

Al vatues presenied in the Financial Staenients are In Sri Laukan Rupees (Rs.) unless otherwise fdicated.

LE Use ot Eiﬁiimﬁ > asnud Judgment

The preparation of dw Fhwncial Statements are in conformily with SLERS for SMEs requires management 1o

make judgmants, estimates and assonystions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reparted
amounts of assess. labilities, scome and expenses. Actual resulis may differ from ﬂwsu estinates,

P

recognised inthe period in which the estimates are revised and in any future peviod

sthates and anderlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing hasis, Revisions ta accounting estimates are




NILEAMAL ESWARAN MARKETING (PRIVATE) LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Information about eritical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounis recogiised b the Financlal Statements is included in the following noles:

< Current taxation (Moig 3.2.8)

«  Deferred taxation (Note 3.2.b)

¢ hupainnent of financial assets (Nate 3.5.3)

¢ hmpairment of Non-financial assets (Note 3.6)

¢ Provisiong and comtingencies (Note 3.8 and Notwe 3.9)

2.6 Materinlity and Agpregation
Fach material class of similar fterns s preseoted separately in the Financial Statements. Hems of @ dissimilar
aature or finction are presented separately unless they are immaterial,

27 Assessment of implications of ceonomic cvisis ol Sri Lauka and Going Coneorn Baxds af Aceounuting
Sri Lanka has been facing a foreign exchange erisis dug (o adverse economic conditions which have grewn (rom
actte o severe acule during the financial vear that ended on 31 March 2023, The Government of Sy Lanka is
taling variows roeasines to control the outflow of foreign exchange resceves of the country inchuding restrictions
on several Bnports and outveard remittances. Despite the Government’s measures o control foreinn excha
sutflows. the continual deterioration of foreign reserves i3 puating pressure on (he exchange rate 1o depresiate in
the market

Frdher, there Is still signitficant uncertalnty over how the prevailing economic erisis will impact the Company's
business in fufure periods and customer demand for its products in retail and industial markets. Mansgomon
bas thevefore modeled different scenarios considering a period of 12 months from the dale of avthorizaiion of
these Tancial stements, The assumptions madeled are based on the estimated potendal tvpact of econamic
vonditions and regulations and expected levels of consumer demand, along with management’s proposest
responses over the course of the perfod. This situation has not vet put severe pressure oo the Company”s Hguidiny
position., Nevertheless, the Company is continuously monitoring the condiiions to ansure a smooll {low of
operations and working capital,

Based oo the Campany’s Hquidity position as at the reporting date, the Board of Divectors has assessed that there
i no nncertainyy regarding the scttloments of external Habilities during the nest 12 months from the date of
suthorizing these Dnancial statements,

Accordingly, the Beard of Directors has a reasonable confidence fevel that the Company has adequate resources
to continue in aperation Tor at Jeast the next 12 wonths and that the going voncern basis of avcounting ramaing
appropriate,

SHGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies sut out below have been applied consistently to all perieds prosented in these Finantial
Slements,

3.4 Foredgn Corrency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional corrency at the exchange rates at the dates of
the wansactions. Monetary assets and Uabilitics denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
serranslated 10 the Nunctional currency at the exchange rate at that date.

i

The foreign currency gain or loss on monctary items is the difference between amortised cost in the funetiona!
casrency al the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and paymsents during the period. and the
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.




NMILKAMAL ESWARAN MARKETING (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Foretgn currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or foss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in ternss of historical cost in a foreign currenty are tanstated using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction,

32 Income Tax Expense
Income tax expenses comprise of current & deferred 1ax expenses recognized in the Smtement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income,

{a) Curpent Taxntion

Current tax comprises the expected tax pavable or receivable on the taxable Income or loss for the your and any
sdjustinent to the tax payable or recelvable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax pavabie or
receivable fs the bestestimate of the tax amoun expected 10 be paid or :‘eceivcd that reflecis uncertainty related
to income tanes, it any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted @t the reporting date.

The Company’s liability to taxation has been computed in accordance with the pravisions of the Infand Revenue

&

Act No. 24 of 2017 and subsequent gazetle notifications,

) Deferved Tanation

Deforred tax is ;‘n‘(s\f'ided on the Habillty method for all temporary difforences as af the reporting dase L wwcm% the
tx bases of assets and labilities and their carrying amoums of assets and iiabilities for Snanch:  repurting
purposes. The balance in the deferred taxation account re presents income tax applicable 1o the ‘1‘iicm;w hetweon
tire written down values Tor tax purposes of the assets on which lax depreciation has been clabmad zmd the et
book vatue of 4 such asset, offset by the provision for employee benefit which is deductible for tas puipose unly
O Dayient,

530 Eveals seeurring affer the mg‘uu'fmg dute
Thee materiality of the events ocew reiy after the repurting d
w diselosures have beer made i the Pinancial Stotaments where NECEsSary.

ate has been considered and approprinie adistments

ABSETS AND BASES OF THEIR VALUATION

34, Inventories

inventories are valued a1 lower of cost o net realizable value, affer making due allowance for obsolete and siow-
moving ftems. Net realizable value is the price al whicl inventories exn be sold i the aarmat course of business
atter allewing or cost of realization and/or cost of conversion fron theis existing state 10 sadeable vondition,

Finishod Goods - Ay purchase cost on frst-in-fiest-out (FIFO) basis
Goeds in Transit -~ AL purchase cost

L5 Fhuuncial Assets
An entity shall recognise a thancial asset or a financial Habili ty enly when the Company heconies 4 party 1o the
contractual provisions of the istoument,

S8 0 Initial measurement

When 2 financial asset oy financial Hability is recognised initially. the € ompany shall measure it at the tr

price Oacluding transaction costs) unless the arrangement constitutes, in effect, a financing irzmnsz ction. A

Mancing wansaction may take phcr‘ w eonnection with the sale of goods or services, for example, U pavient is

uéci‘mm% beyond wormal business terms or s financed af a rote of interest that is not a m n!«u mtc If the

arrangemend constituies a iiimnunﬂ transaction, the Company shall measure the financial asset or {inaacial

oilisy st the present value of the future p payments discounted at w market rate of interest Tor o similar debt
Huslrument

S84, Bubseguent measurtment

At end of each reporting period, the Company shall measure Tancial instruments as follows L without am

duduction for ansaction costs the entity may incwr on sale or other dis posals,

action

9




AMAL ESWARAN MARKETING (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Debt inswuments shall be measured at amortised cost using the effective interest raethod. Cash and dely
instruments that are olagsifled as current assets or current Habilities shall be measured st the undiscounted amount
of the cash or other consideration expectod 1 be pali or received (Le., net of impaimment) unless the arvangemam
constituies, i effect, o fnancing transaction I the arrangerment constitutes a flaancing tansaction, the entity
shall measure the debt instrument at the present value of the future payments dissounted at a naarket rate of
fterest for a similar debt insteument,

Trade and other veceivables

Prade ad other receivables and due from Related Pardes ave initdally recognized at cc
athier receivables are stated at the amounts they are estimated to realize net of impain
receivables,

. Tragde receival
ent for bad and doubtiy i

Hreeeivables extend beyvond the normal ¢redil lenms, those receivables are mmeasured at ansortized cost using the
eifective inferest rate al the end of cach reporting period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalens are cash in hand, demand deposits and short-term b
convertibic o known amounts of cash and subject 1o an inglgnificant risk of changes in value,

Iy figquid investments, reuadily

For the parpose of the Stateroent of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash o hand and deposus
i ks net of outstanding haak overdeafis,

AR5 bmpadrment of financial assels measured at eost or amortised cost

At the end of each reporting period, the Company shall assess whether there is objective evidence of impairman
of any Tinandal assers that wee neasured at costor amoﬂ sed cost, I there 1s objective evidence of Impainmens,
the entity shall recognize an impainment loss i profit or loss immediately, ()n;u‘% ive evidenee that a financial

o1

assel or group of assets is mpaired includes observable data that come to the attention of the Company abous the

s events,

L8310 Messuroment

The Company shall measure an trpaimient loss on financial assets measwred at cost or amortsed cost as the
difterence between the assel's carrying amownt and the presend value of estimated cash flows discounted at the
assots original effective interest rate, 1 such a financial asset has a variable interest rate, the discount rate foy
measuring any impainment loss is the current effective interest vate determined under the contract

354 Derecognition of a financinl agsel

The (‘m';;‘a:ww derecognises g financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the Tinancial
asset explre or it transfers the vights 1o receive the contraciual cash flows in a tasaction i which substantially
aif risks and rowards of awnership of the financial asset ave transferred or fn which the Company neithor ransfors
sor retaing substantially all visks and reweards of oweership and it does not retain control of the financial ssser,

56, Impairment of Non-financial assets

The carrving amoonts of the Company's non-financial assels sueh as deferred fax assets are roviewed gl cach
repariing date to determine whether there is any indication ai“impa%mwnt If any such indication exista then the
asset s recaverable amount i3 estimated. For intangible aysets that have indefinite usefud lves or that are not v
avaiiable foruse, the recoverable muoun is estimated each vear at ‘ghc samie Lime,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-geverating unit is the greater of ity value In use and s fair x"ex%‘{!&" loss

costs to sell. fn pssessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are disconnted (o thelr present vadue using
a presax discownt mae tie reflecs current market assessments of the thme vadue of woney and the visks specific
1o the asset, For the purpose of tmpairment testing, assets thal cannot be tested individually are grouped togethe

o the sasdlest geoup of assets that generates cash inflows oot continuing use that are s : mlazfgmadmi ui"

the cash nflows of other assets,

bapalrent losses are recognized i profit or loss.
f &



NLKAMAL ESWARAN MARKETING (PRIVATE) LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Liabilities classified as Corvent Liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position are these obligations payvable
i demand or within one year from the Staement of Financial Position, ltems classitied as non-current Habilitics
are those obligations. which expire beyond a period of one vear from the reporting date,

Al known Habilities bave been accounted for in preparing the Financial Statements, Provisions and flabiities are
recognized when the € ompany has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past evewts and it is probable
that an outflow of econoniie benefits will be reguired to seile the ob ligation.

39, Mon-derivative financial Habilities
“i’lsz‘: Company initially recognises debt securities issued and subordinated labilities on the date that they are
[R5 -

winated. All other financial Habilities (neluding labilities designated at fuiv value through proft or loss) are
recognised Tnitally on the tude date at which the Company becomes a parly to the contractual provisions of ihe
imsiinnent,

The Company devecognises o finmicial Hability when its contractual oblizations are disclurged or cancelivd or

expive.

Financial assets and labilitdes are offset and the net amount presented in the Statemen of Financial
when, and only when, the Compmy has @ legal right to oifset the amows and fotends elther f setle o o net
basis or to renlise the asset and setde the Hability simaltaneously,

Fhe nop -~ devivative finaneial Habilides comprise only with tade and other payables

Such financial labilities ure recognised indtally at i value plus any direetly auributable wansaction ¢
Subsequent to initial recognition these financial labifities are measured at amoriised coxt using the wfiect
gnerest mcthod,

(‘”m‘( Provisions and lahilities
A provision is recognised i) a5 a result of a past ovent, the Company has 6 present fegal or constructive oblign

that can be estimated reliably, and # is probable that an sutflow of cconomic benelits witl be rec wived @ se
the obligation, Provisions ave determined by disconnting the expected fulure ca: >§ flows at & proetax rate that
eetocts curvent marker assessments of the tme value of money and the risks spectfic to the fmbiliy, The
enwinding of the discount rate is recognised as g finance vost.

38 Contingencies and Capiinl Commitments
Al taterial capital commitments and contingencies, which exist as at the reporting date, are disclosed in the
cespeclive noles o the Finuncial Saiements.,

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOMI

A Revenur Recognitinn
Revenue is recogniced to the extent that it is probable that the ceonomic benefits will flony s the Company and
that revenue and associated costs incurred or 1 be incurred can be refiably measured. Revenue s messured

e fair value of the consideration reveived or reccivable. net of trade discounts and sales ases.
The following specific eriteria are used For the purpose of reeoginition of vevenue,

{2 Sale of Goods
Revepue from the sale of goads o the course ol ordi inary activities i measured at the iy value of the
constderation received or recelvable, net of relurns, tade dissounts and vohaue rebates.

Revenoe is recognized when sipaificant risks and rewards of ownership have been (rusterred 10 the customurs.,
usualy on dispaich ¢ ‘,vi the g,md.,,




NILKAMAL ESWARAN MARKETING (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ihy Other Income
Cther income is recognized on an acerual basis,

Net gains and Josses of a reventie nature on the disposal of nonecurrent assets are sccounted for i the Matemoent
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, having deducted from proceeds on disposal, the carrying
smount of the assets and refated selling expenses.

Gains and losses arising from incidental activities 1o main revenue generating activities and those arising from a
group of similar ransactions which are not material, are aggregated, reported and presented on a net busis

3.1 Expenditure Hecognition

{2} Operating Exponses

iiv"' enses are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on the basis of'a

divect asseciation between the cost iewrred and the eaming specific items of income. All expenditure focurred
in the running of the business and in mwaintaining the property, plant and equipment in a state of elficicacy has

treen charped to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive lncorae.

(b} Financs Income and Expense
Interest income and expenses are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The citective
interest rate s the rute that exactly discounts the estimated fulwe cash receipts o payments throngh

dseut the
expected life of the financial asset or Habilities (or, wheve appropriate, a shorter period) 10 the carrying wmount
of the financial asset or Habilities. When <:asi«.ﬂ§amwi 1e effective inerest rate, the Company estimates luture cash
floves considering all contractual terms of the financial lnstrament, but not future credi {osses

The catowlation of the effective inferest rate includes sli transaction costs aud fres and points pald or rege
f

{hat are an imearal part of the effective interest rate, Transuction vosts include incremental costs that are direet
sitvibutable to the acquisition or issue of a finuncial sssed o Hability,

{£) Borvowing cost
Al borrowing vosis are recoguiscid as an expense in the period in which they are fnenryed,

512 Related Pavty Transactions
Disclosures has been madde in respect of the transactions i which orie parly has the Hability to control tr exartise

sienificant influence over the financial and operatag decisions/policies of the other, }rm‘;;ﬁtrzsiivtz of a price being
charged,

4. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared using the [udirect Method,

For cash flow purposes, eash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdraiis,

A MEW ACCOUNTING STARDARDS

£ Standsrds ssued but Not Yot BEffeetive

o

A number of new standards are effective for annoal peciods beginning afler | January 2023 and earlier spplication
is permitted; however, the Company bas not early adopted the vew or amended standards in preparing these
financial statements,

The following new and amended standards are not expecied to have a significant impact on the Company's
financial staternents.

o Peferred Tax reluted 0 Assers and Lisbilitios arising from a Single Transaction (Anmendments o
LAS 12}

[



MILKAMAL ESWARAN MARKETING (PRIVATE) LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The amendments parrow the scope of the inital recoguition exemption to exchede wansactions that give
pise o vqual and offsetting temporary differences ~ e.g. leases and decommissioning labilities, The
amendments apply for annual reporting peviods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, For leases and
decowmissioning Habilities, the associated deferred tax asset and fHabilities will need to be recogoized from
the beginuing of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an
adjustment (o retained carnings or other components of equity at that date. For ail other transactions, the
amendments apply 1o transactions that ocour afler the beginuning of the earliest period presented. There wil)
e no mpact oo retained vamings on adoption of the amendments.

Osher standards

& Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments 1o LKAS 1) « effective for
annuai periods beginning on or after | Janvary 2025,

e SLEFRS [7 lnsurance Contracts and amendiments 1o SLERE {7 luswance Contracts - elfective fur
annual periods beginning on ov after 1 January 2023,

» Disclosure of Accounting Pelicies (Amendments 1o LRAS 1 and SLERS Practice Statement 23 -
effuctive Tor annual periods beginning on or after | Jwiuary 2023

e Diefinition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to LKAS 8) « effective for annual periods
begining on ov alter  January 2023,




MULEKAMAL ESWARAN MARKETING (PVT) LTD
NOTES TOCTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March, 2623 2023
HEN
5 Kevenue
Sale of goods 29.630,730 53,220,378

20,620,736 52,228,378

Revenue comprises the invoiced value of goods dispatehed and accepted by the customers outside Nitkamal Group

during the year.

Doe to Covid-19 the Company started huporting steam Inhater products {besides the Crates & Bins) and sold them
i the local narket. Compared to last year the demand for stemn products has reduced stgnificantly and also due w
the restrictions imposed by the Sri Laskan Government on inports of noreessential goods, die supply of the
products also decreased. However, sales of Cambro segiment products have increased compared fo the prive vear,
mainty dug 0 the Import restrictinns whtich have made e marker supply significanty lower, Iim Compainy had the
opporwnily w sell the existing products for a high price.

Profit from operations
Profit from operation is swed after charging ofl the cxpenses inchuding the foltowing,

{Hrectors’ emoluments it Nl
Auditors’ remuneratios - audit and audit related sorvices 2800600 235000
non-audil services 180,000 RUIRES
! tartal Fees 168,001 1O7.00384
Provision for impaivement of stow msoving stoek (Note 114 1399766 Jded

Net finange come
Viaance nenme
Eowelie S

bgyest on T8 Repos A177.702

Finance expense
interest Sxpense (4.017)

N

Bank charges {28,955

Lxchonze Loss (Nowe 7,15 (2,705 81y 3,687,600
{2,748.883) (3,879,374}

Mef fnanes lncome 2,528,819 {3,140.878%)

71 8ei Laokan Rupee (LKR) signilicantly deprecinted against US Dallar (USD) from Rs. 2004 per V& as ot |
Aprit 20272 t0 Rs, 3274 por USD as at 31 Mareh 2023 as 2 result of forelgn exchange erisis i 80 Lanka, which io

turn has resubied In signiticant exchange losses during this year

Income tay expense
Llurrent tax (Nole 8.1) F223,006 3,
CrverUnder lax adiustpent {681,260} -

Deferred tax expense

Deferred 1ax assers (reversed ¥ oviginated during the year 881,280 (RBLZ80)
Deferred tax liability reverses)? (ovighnated) during the year -

5.223.006 3,401 403

8.1 Reeconciliatinn of the aecounting profit and the income tax expense (upte 30.09.2022

frofit before taxadon 70183140
Disaliowable expenses (97,2143
Aftowabie expenses ARELY
Tavable invame G019,978

fumrert tax at 2 1.660,7958

Cusrent tax at 24% on [ 494,010 163,830

Total enrrent tax expense for the periotd/vear 2,154 804 4,573,682




NifL

AAMAL ESWARANMARKETING (PVH) LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMERTS
For the yeur ended 31 March 2023
B, invome fay expense {Continued)
8.2 Reconcilistion of #he gecounting profit aud the inconme fax expense (frons 0L TR.I022 0 31.03.2023
2123 2023
Hs. s,
Profit before taxation 5424438 -
{Disatlowable expeuses 1648407 -
Alfowable expenses A3.400 »
Taxable Bl incame EALERU N -
Tasable favestment hucome 3319324 -
Current tax ot 30% on B 2432404 -
Current tax a1 30% on i EERNA -
306820111
Total current tax expense for the vear 5,212.000 -
BX As provided for iy Sectdon 29 of Sti Lanka Accounting Siandand foe 58Bs - Income s, currant s Habilitios (asssis
she current period and prior perfods st be measured at the amount cspucted © be paid to Gevovered frony ax suthoritics. using
the fax rates (aned tax Jaws) that have been enacted or substaisively enacied by the end of the reponting potiod, Purther, daferred
iy assets and Habilities should be measured at e tax sare that see expeeted o be applied B the period Suowhich the REURTS
seatised or v Habiliy will be seutded, based on the v @ad 1ay Iws) that bave been enaeted or subsimiively enacted by the
end of the wportag period,
As insiucied by e Ministry of Finance 2 change o the fucome Tax Raw of the Company, from 24% 10 10% was implemenied
swith eifect from U 5§ Getober 2022, 45 per the new 1ay rate Jegislated by dw Inkand Revenue Departiment {Amendment) Avt ne
43 6l 2027, Accandingly, the Company has applicd 24% for the proti for e six months snded 30 Sepiomber 2022 wd |
shie gouiits for the sis mosths cndod 31 Mareh 2023,
9. Hiasic earpings per share
featation of busic carning por share is bused un the net profit atributable to Owdinary Sharchelders divided by the waighied
average number of ordinary shares outstanding g5 at the reporting date.
For flie year cuded 31 Murch, 2023
Profit for the vesy (Re) o7
sited wverage number of onlinwry shayes s
cupizings por share (s} 125,994
P, Preforved Tavation

Prelerred tox assis (Note 10,13 - 581280
Ri§, 288

HLE Beferred Tax Assed
Balanoe sy at e beginning ol the year #8180 -
Aspniat reversod during the year w profit or fosy
bipaet from change in tax rate (Mot 10.3)
Amou {reverscdyorighmted during dhe vear

{83280

Totsl wmount veversed duriag the yoar te profit or fuss (#%1,280; BRE 5

Balunse as at ibe end of Yeur . H81.258

L2 Deferred oy assety are atfributable 1w e following

A5 ar 31 Muarch, AU 2z

Tewiporavy e o Temporary " o
“.} o Pax Effeet ,,)i o Fas Effect
Differense Pffereney
Deferred Tay Assels
Fan Credivop unrealised exchange losses - - iy [ELI WAt

]
- - {3.672,00i {881,280

freforred as Asaet - ¢ e
Sqptionbie tus rple (Note 18.3) 0% 3%



MILKARMAL PSWARAN MARKETING (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year eaded 31 Marcd 2023

14, Deferred Taxation (Continued)

1.3 Change in tax rate

As provided for {s Section 29 of Sii Lanka Avcounting Siandard for SMEs, deforred tax assets and Hubitities should be
areasured ot the tay rale that are expected 1o be applicd in the peried in which the asset with he realised of the Tability will be
settled. based oo e tax rate (and 1as lawsy that Have been enacied by subsiantively enacied by the und of the reporting perind,

As instrusted by the Ministry of Finance o chunge o (e Tncome Tax Raw of the Company, from 149% 10 30% wus implememod
with elfeet from 01 & Ouvleber 2022, As per the ew tax rate legisluied by the nlund Revenue Deparimsent {Amandinamy Ay

a3 of 2022

Ayt 3 March, 2023 022
Rs. s,
11, lavenioriey

Finished goods - Famninue 3 LO0Y
- Ulpides 48,732,201
Laocat Quiscurcing Producia 49,150

A4,692 550
(12972434
21,726,416

Fexs : Provision foy slow moeving ventories (Note T}

16,0, Blovement in Proviston for Slow Moving loventories
Balance as ut the beginning of the vear

Provision for the year
Babince as ot the end of e year

11,2 The Company has morigaged Ty stocks, with assigrment over Trade Dubtors, to abiain Banking facilities wpllue

sawe of the Bank Facility Gerurity Value
Consmpreial Bank of Cevlon PLC [P based aad non-fund based shor teim fucilitios ¢

12, Truade and other receivables
Figacial

Frace reveivables (Mo 12.1) 1761800 Fa3s 17

Reiimdable Doposiis 49077 37
1,860,967 {62,452

Nop-Finaneiad

Prepayvmants 28,351 1,908

VAT receivables T HE3 043 REPEIAE
RREI N ERPER IS

Trade and Other Recelvables 3,983,201 $337, 278

12,5 Trade Recelvibles

Traade reseivables ~ Rolued Pastios (Now 1113 - {21400
Trose receivablos - vibers £.769.918 ]

Provigion for impairment of tade recelvables (Mow 12,100 (8028
§. 761,898

11.4.1, Provision for lmpadrment of Teade Receivables

Balonce as al the begiming of the yeur 94654
Write-back during the year RN
Roversal during the year ISR RIH

Write-olf during the wear
Provision for the year :
Palance as at the end of e yoar 8.4824 PIRG

aq

st
o




SMILEAMAL ESWARAN MARKETING (PVT) LTD
SOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As @ 31 March, 603 122

F2, Trade and sther recelvabics (Conthuued) Rs. RS,
13, 020 Tvade Reveivables-Related Fariies
Fawaran Brothor Esport {(Pyviy Lad - 21800
Eswaran Brother Export {Pvt) Lid - Trading .
Fawaran Brothers Export (Pvg Ld- Crate
Good Value Eswaran (v Lid . SE8.600

- 610400

12.1.2 Trade receivables significantly decreased as o resudt strengthenoed cash collections provess post Covid-19 ouibresk
and also there were low sales during the vear with related parties,

&

Cash and eash equivalents

Casly in hand HLODD
Cash at bank 661,759
Bank ovardrafl -

Investmont on Preasusy Bills purchased under eesale agreamants (Repos) F330000600
bterest Recivable 454,676
Cash & eash equivadents as per the statoment of casl flows 34,609,435

£4. Seated eapiial
Issued and fully paid
100 opdisnry shares 1004 1,008

P5. Trade and uther payables
Finaneial
Fradde pavebles ~ (Nate 13,4

Mor-Finaneial
Usther payi

Adsances frons cusiomerns
{Note d

Acerud expre

Hid4, 106 EHZ.1A7
Trade and ether payables 814,166 1288070
A L Trade payables
{rade payebdes « Nitkamnal Limited ~ ndia (fthe Ultimae Parent™) s P13

Frade payubles ~ Other -

T8, L1 Payments Jor imports have been delayed due wo the foreign exchange erists o 51 Lanka

15.3 Avverped expense

Provision {or Audit Pee :

Provision for Nales Incentive JostHutional 91888
179,588

14, Related party payables
Cioud Value Essvaran {Pvi) Lad . -

1. Current taxation

Hudaace as at the begiuning of the year 2408187 TeNTE
Over provision in relation W prive vears (ERE.2801

Provision for current vear (Note 8.1) 3273006

Paymuent made during e vear 4,432,094 (2,733.20:4;
PBalanee as at the ond of the vesr 2317818 2,408,187

18, Helated purfy disclosures
The Company carsied out tamsactions in the ordinary course of Hs business with parties who are defined us relaied parties

ax per the secton 33 of Sd Lanka Aceouwnting Standurds Tor SME - - Related Party Diselosores’, the details of wisiah are

reprovied belows

17



MULKAMAL ESWARAN MARKL
NOTERS TO THE FINANCIAL 81

For the year vided 31 Starch 2023

GEVTILID
MENTS

ATE

18, Related party disclosures {Contl)

18,5 Parent sad Ulthnate Pavent Party

The Company's parept enfity is Nilkamal Eswaran Plastics {Pv0) Lidh In the opinion of Divectors, the ultmale porent parts
Hikamat Limtted which is incorporated i fodia.

is
153 Wey Management Personnel (KMP)

According Sl Laska Accouniing Standard for SMEs, Key Management Personnel are those having avtharity and

reaponsibilite for pleoning, divecting, and contralling the activides of the ontity, Accordingly. the Dirccions of the

[FEIEEEN

Company, Directors of the Immedinie Parent Eatity Nitkawad Eswarag Plastics (v bad, the Divectors of e

Parest Fatiyy Nitkamal Limited and other members of the mansgement wam who hold sigaiticam autheeity and

pesponsibifity for planmdeg, divecting and contreling the entity's activities have been classifted us KMP of the Conmpany,

Compensation pald to Eey Management Pessunnel 2025 PAIPN

ﬁﬁ( E%:’;,
Short Term Benelits Wi B
Post BEmplover Benelis il

183 Redated party diselosures
£8.3. Transactions with Related Entities

. . Transactive  Transavtion
Mg of the Beluted

Party Relatiouship Nature of the Transaction Amont Anienni
art 2022/23 2021722
M %{m

Nithamal Lintted » Indin Ultinnate Parent Purchase of goods

i WA from) Plastics
“in \giilu fG s\% 1’3’2,

tmmeidiate Parenl Ne

Cioud Value Bswaran Purchases -

[SES PR RS Settlenenis [ R

Cisod Value Bswarun Purchases * gt
(Pt L - e {"ump'mim L

iy L - Cane Scitlentents .

ipniticanyy
in me od by
KAMP ad thedr
close i(m‘n?y

Porclises .
Settlanents

Essvaran Buahers hspont
Pyt bl

Faowavan Brothers BExport members Purchuses ~ :
Pt Lad-Trading Seitlenients - (56,868}
Eawaran Brathaers Lspor Purchases -

Pop bl Settismenis (21,800

Ametsus receivable from and due 1o related anlves as w31 Mareh 2003 are disclos 2 16y

anad payubles w related entitios are disclozed in Note 11 and M

Trade reccivables

Nitkan mi Eswaran Plasties (v Lid bay provided a Corporate Guarantee for Re J6.000, ﬂi)tézl daled 24

1 Tacihitioy ¢

ade available o the Company by Comunercial Bank of Covlon PLC

i1

19, Flagacia? visk mapagenient

Overview

Thie Compuny bis exposure 1o the Rallowing visks from its e of fnancial Instrunents:
{ i,rc-«ii‘; risk

20 Piquidis sk

3 Markets

Operation
Uhis node presents information about the Company”™s exposure w0 cush of the above 1

e CompanTs ol

gobicies and processes for aw

disvinsures are included throt

suring aeed nrasaging risk, and the Company™s mmpugomaen of caplial, Partheo ganatigiiee
tHIA %E ’

financial statement.




MILKAMAL ESWARAN MARKETING (VT LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hor thie year ended 31 March 2023

i%,

Financial risk management (Cont)

Risk management framework

The Bourd of Divecwrs Bias overall resporsibility Tor the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk mansgement
framevork. The Board is responsible for developing wid monftoring the Company™s risk management policics.

The Company’s sk managunent policies are established to identily and analyse the risks faced by the Comparg. 1o st

:

appropriste risk Himits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence 1o Bmits, Risk mnag

enent policies and systems

are reviewed regudasty o reflect cliamges in market conditiony and e Compuny’s activities, The Compasy. hrongh s
t ) 1 D ;

raining and management standards and procedures, @ims © devetop a disciplined wnd constructive contrat envivonmont

in which ull emplovees understand their roles and obfigations.

0L Credii risk

Corediv risk is the visk of Tinancial loss o the Company 11 & customer or coumterpirty 1o 2 fnasciad fnstrument Brils o

meat ity contractial obligations. and arises principatly Nront the Company’s receivabiles From customers, rehied partios,

shart tenn vestisends and cush and cash equivalents.

The Company trades with own dissributors with bank guarantee and tades maxinum up Gy dhe gudsrantes vihie, In
addition. receivable badances are monitored on an ongoing busis with the result that the Company’s expostre 1o bad dobts

in not significant, Cash and cash equivalents are held with banks which have pood ratings based on Fiteh vatings,

&

F9.0.1 Credit visk exposnre and managing the risk
Fhe carylng amount of finsnclal assets represents the maximum oredi oxposure, The masimum exprsare 19 eredit ¢
¢t the reporting date was as follows

by gr 31 Mareds, 24231 E
s, B,
Prade and other receivabihes 1810 967 IREIH

Clush & eash equivalenis 34609435 IR.O48. 88
3,424,402 29081.333

19.2 Liguidity Risk

Liguiday visk s the Bk that the Company will eacounter difffeulty In meeiing the obligations assuciusted with s
financial Habilities that are selded by detivering cash or another finamcial ssset. The Company’s approsch (0 managing
Houddizy is 1o ensure, as

both normal and stres

far as possible, that Iwill abways fave sufficient Bquidity t meet 16 labitities whes doe. uader
ed - conditions, without Incurring unuccoptable Josses or risking damage o the Company™s

<

repidation.

Maturity Analysis

The wble below sumunarizes the mpturity profile of e Company’s financlal Habilfities based on coptracual
undiscounted payments,

Within § Between -2 Sore than 2
Year Years Yonrs
Av af 31 March 2023 Nk, 15, s,
Trade pavables
Related party paysbles . . .
Asar 31 March 2022
Related party pavables - - .

$.3 Market Risk
Market visk i the disk that changes Tn market prices, such as foreign exehange rates, nterest rates and equity prives will

affeet the Company™s income wr the value of is hotdings of fimncial nstruments, The oblective of mrkey rlsk

masagerent is 1o manige and control murkel risk esposures within eprable parameters, while optimizg

The e,




SHLKAMAL ESWARAN MARKFETING (FVDY LTD .
SOVES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

‘For the your ended 31 March 2023

B Financial rish management {Cont))
9.3 Market Risk (Cont)
19.5,1 Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrmnent will fluctiate due to changes in forelgn exchange rates,
The Company Is exposed (o foreign currency risk arising mainly frops forel ign currency denominated 0 3 currency
ather than the respective functional currencies of Company. The currencies Jo which these ransactions privearily are
denominated n USD.

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk {5 as foltows;

Asat 31 Mareh 2023 As at 31 March 2022
LSD Canverted to Bs, USD {',‘mzv;;“ig.{i L
Trade payables - Nilkamal Limited - - 38,250 FLA36, 750
28,250 11,436,750

I respect o moenctary assews and Jabilities denondnated in fureian cuvreacios, the Company ensures that s nes
exposure is kept 1o an acceptable level by buyving or selling loreiyn currencies at spot rates when necessary 16 addrins
shori-term hmbalane
19.5.2 tuterest Bate Risk

Imeresi rate visk §s the visk 1o the Company's carnings and ceononic value of equity CEVE arising frem astverse

povements in infoyest rates,

Manugement of futevest Rare Risk
The Company's investnent degisions in faterest bearhu
by the Doard of Dirvewrs and they are advised and gaided only o ivest in securad and regulated Investment zonroes.

15 are controlied by the Igher level authorites appoioted

584

P94 Gperational vish

Operational risk s the sisk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide varicty of causes assovhsted with the
¢ c‘:mgﬁ»a;‘i}f’s processes. personnel. technology and infrastructure, and from external fncwrs other than eredit market aud
Haguidity riske such as those arising from legal and regufaton requirenients and generally avcepied stndards of
porate behavior, Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s operations, The primary responsibitity for the
deveippiment anid jiplementation of contrels o address operational visk is assigied W senior manag
business unit. This respousibility is supporied by the development of overall Company standards for the numagement

ner within each

of oporational risk in the following areas:

- Requirements for appropriate segregation of dutles, Including the independent anthorization of trensaciions.
- Reyuirements for the recongiliation and monitering of transactions.
- Reguirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remediad action,

Bevelopment of contingeney plans,

Fraining and professional developmant.

Hihdeal and business standards,

Risk mitigation. including insurance when this is effective.
- Complianee with reguftory and other legul requirenenss.

20 Faly vatues of finuocial instruments

The falr values of financial sssets and Habilities. topether with the carrying anmouns sl in the stadement of financiad

position, are as follows:
Ax i 31 Marel, 2823 022
Currying amount Fabr value Carvylug Fair value
U RIBTHTA
. s,

Financial assels of amaertived cost

Prade and other receivables P B10.967 1,813,967 1,062,452 EAED
Cash and cash cquivaients 34,609,433 34,609,438 18,048,881 2HAE B

36,426,402 A20,402 19,081,333 U EE1,333




MUKAMAL ESWARAN MARKETING (PYIYLTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As ot 31 Mareh, 2023 kiiry
- . _ Carrying -
Carrying amoeund Fair value i Fair value
- amount
20, Falr values of finsncial instruments {Cont.)
Finnucind Habilitiey at amortised cost
Trade pavables - 11,438,719 436,719
Retated party pavables - . . -
“ 11,436,719 11436,719

The methods and assumptions used 10 estimate the fair values of the financial strunents are ag follows;

a} Cash and cash equivalents - The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximate its ir value duc to
the relatively short waturity of the financia! Instrurments.,

B} Trade and other receivables, Refated party receivables, Trade payables. Related party pavables sed Bank overdraft
- The carrying amount of these financial assets and lubiliics approximate its faly value due w he velatively shon
nuaturity of the financial instrunients,

25 Capltad Commitnients mid Contingent Lishilities
There were o contraet for capital expenditure of material amounts approved or contructed for as at the reporting

dute. There have been no material Contingent Liahitites owtstanding as at the reporting dute.

201 Litigation and claim
There weve no pending lidgation or claims as at the reporiing date.

[
>

Comparative figures
Where necessury, comparative figures have been rearranged 1o conforn with the current vear's p

25 Events Geewrring after the Reporting daie
Fhewe were o materia) evests ovcurring after the reporting diule as at 31 March 2022 that requive adivstmenis 1o or

disclosure in the Financial Statments,

§i

4 Board of Birectar's respousibility for Gnancial veporting
the Board of Divectors is responsible for the preparmtion and presentation of these Floanolal Swtements in
accordanee with Sri Laska Accouting Standards for small and mediuni-sized entities fatd dow by the Instinge of
Chartered Accoumants of $41 Lanka and the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007,

S



MLKAMAL ESWARAN MARKETING (V1) LTD
DETAILED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year eoded 31 Mared,

Revenue
Clost ol sales
Gross profit
Sdminisivative expenses

Distribution expenses

Profit from operatious

2023
Hs,

29,620.730

F3328.834

2022
s,

2,220,378

(34,524,720

16,491,891

647,683

252,372

17,698,658

{970,969

«
oo
"
]
s
3
Fh

15,191,634

15,886,334




NILKAMAL ESWAR,

BEVAILED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AN MARKETING (PVTY LTD

For the year esded 33 Mureh,

Pu ses - Furniture

Purchase - Crajes & Bipg

Purchase - Local Fursiture

fergase of Investory

Provision for Slow Moving Stocks (Expen
Change In FG

Purchase

ADBHNIBTRATIVE CAPERSES
& Consubiance Fees

Audit fees

Inswrance chirges
"nugl(i i 1Y
Stomp duty

E}Eb"i‘ﬁi ERUTION EXPENSES
Promotion & evens

CHstribuior safes incentive

Bad Bebls Account - Furniqure

N ;iixs“mmzi {hnmediately 122,59

\§<‘§l H

expuses - furniiure

! h‘iii 5
T s ~foval firnin

pott chig
dobis
Safes moentives-Instinnjonal

Pranspord CUharges-Fumniture

Seethorent Discounts (immediately)-3.5%
Setdesment Discounts (16 10 30 Days)-1%
Safes nseatives « Cambro

s fncentives

sales promostions

Var on free imsue and sample issues
VAT written off

Chitine Sales Commission

5e)

2023 223

FE s,
“ 12,759 371
$.369,748 F6,457.527
127,000 FUSE IR0
. {06073
i 399,766 JAT 14

G 7 685
- 236150
B FOR.001
(10F,430;
- 197 597
i
R
(48,873 -
- 60 768
» %,
- 2.0
- 1,76 (x
280,508
G, 24444
3481 w
2.374 .
5668
i2 REOSY
2EEATS R38,338
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INDHEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
TOTHE SHAREHOLDERS OF NILEAMAL ESWARAN PLASTICS (PVT) LTD
Heport on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Nilkamal Eswaran Plastics (Pvt) Lid ("the Company™) and the
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidizry ("the Cmmp 3 which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of camprehensive income. stafement
of changes i equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial slatements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

{11 our opinion, the accompanying finuncial statements of the Company and the Group give a truc and €
view of the financial position of the Company and the Group as at 31 Mavch 2023, and of their finane a{
performance and cash flows for the vear then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard for
Gmall and Medium-Sized Entities,

Basis for Oploion
we conducted owr audit o accordance with Srt Lanka Au mmg, Standards (SLAuSs). Our rosponsibili

=
1S

wacker those standards are further deseribed in the Auditors” Respemsibilitios for the Audit of zfnz Fim .fmi'
Sratements section of owr report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical

ruquirements of the Code of Fthics fssued by CA Sii Lanka (Code of Tithics) that are relevant to our audii of
the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical ru;;mmt bifities i accordance with the Code
of Fihics. We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sulficient and appropriate to provide
basis for our opinion.

Other Information
Munagoment is responsible for the other informution. These financial statements do not comprise other
information.

o statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any

Cur opinton on the financ
isjon thereon,

ia
form of assurance conclusi
Responsibilities of Munagertent and Those Charpged with Governanee for the Finunelal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that ghve a true and Tadr view i
accordance with Sif Lanka Accounting Standard for Smail and Medhwm-Sized Entities, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary 10 enable the preparation of financial staternents that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.




zara

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either inlends to liquidate the Group or 1o cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s and Group's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Kespousibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the {inancial statements as a whole are free
{from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditors® report that includes our
opinion. Keasonable assurance is 1 high level of assurance, bat is not 4 guaranice that an audit conduciad in
accordance with SLAUSs will always deteet a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from frawd or error and are considered material if, individually or in the nggrepate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

A further deseription of the auditors” responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at $1i
Lanka Accounting and Auditing Standards website at hp:/slagsc.com/auditing/auditorsresponsibility, pho,
This description forms part of vur auditors’ report.

Heport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremients

As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Aol Na. 07 of 2007, we have obtained all the information
and cxplanatdons that were required for the audit and, as far as appears fromy oy examination, proper
accounting records have been kept by the Company.

CHARTERED ACUOUNTANTS
Ceodombo, Sri Lanka
{8 May 2023



NILKAMAL EEWARAN PLASTICR (VY LTD
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS & OTHER COMPREHENRIVE INCOME

{irpup
For the yeae ended 31st March, 2423 022
Nodes Rs. Ry,

Revenue 5 849,015,381 1522095675

Cost ol safes (13,709,569 (1.091,523,885)

Carass Profit
Urthuer ipeome
Adnvnisteative exponses

Bissribution expenses

Profit feam Gperations 7 134,148,624 96,918,138 FIS856,997 181,028,798
Nel finance meons {expeasel b 43,971,390 (76,110,757 41,342,771 {11909, 870
Profit Befvre Taxation 174,924,214 120,804,408 187299768 5 NRRG(9
Inoeme s expornse 9 (R EAL A2 {16433 065 (38,836 71%) (20706568,
Peofit far the Year 04,078 787 4,371,336 101,445,050

Otler Comprehessive breome for the Yo ~ ~

Total Cumprelensive Incame far the Year UG, 075,787 104,371,336 01,440,850 87,.3%

fusie Lavatugy per Bhare {(#s) i 67,19 it 11 4,38 85,33

Flures o beackets mdicate deductions.

6

Comgrany

2823
iy,

S4A04830

(500,188,797

22

HES

L409,87 S,

{1.0356,00G 175

338,306,013
3,887,744
{(91.402,972)

{118,642, 1603

43.574,780
3297147
(14,3349

(162,618,704

SIRZ14,125
5.887, 744
(90,755,283

(118,359,584

2876122
3.297.147

(713304012

(el 760459

The netes fo the Fisancnd Siatements for an infegral pact of these Financial Saremenss.




\32 KAMAL ESWARAN PLASTICS {(PYTILTD
ATESMENT OF FINANCIAL PORSITION

Group Company

Aswr 3 March, 023 2082 20233 2522

Nutes Hs, Rs, s Rs,
Nen-Current Assets
Prapeny, plant sl equipment i Vi6, 192 477 249,838 239 9BI8 230
stgnpibie aseig 12 272,658 396,521 A ki
favesiment in subsidingy 13 - « 1000 Lo0n
Issvestments 24 24,674,000 - 24,674,460 N
Total Mon-Current Assels 201,139,135 210,234,560 201,140,136 210,235,504 ’

Current Assels

1 213,771,818 219,532 5061 188219 400
T and other receivahles 15 [36.018, (ﬂ‘? 206,127 918 132,814.7 § f] TG 300 645
Cash snd cash equivalents 17 390,096,632 S81.828 514 355487, 297 83,76 630
Fotal Current Axsets 167,968,308 001,728,280 TH7.833 ‘7?8 B3RIRG,E
Total Assets 969,107,343 L211,939 810 28,975,864 INELRO S £
ROUTTY & LIABILITIES
Lyuity
Stted capiial iH 20,000,000 20,000,600 20000000 2
Retained earnmgs RIS ARG, 717 22 A04M30 766,330,800 661,887, 8
Total Eyuity 845,480,717 742,404,930 THE,230.500 GHL857 840
NanCurrent Lishilities

1 3 359517y 25 RAGLED
mpslovee henetisg 24 309,61 40,086,005 33,700,612
Patal Now Cuvvent Ligbifices 57,546,265 44,081,182 57,540,265 )
Cuevend Linbilifie,

i 21 A0 27 347,959, 394

22 1. HOEID 16
Curient laxation 23 20,442,535 10,713,850 ih Uri i
Tatal Curvent Linhifisies 63,080,360 $25.473,698 GROUR, 709 4,
fotal Liabilities 126264626 469,554,880 (22,642,974 $6.3,754,6¢ :'3
Fowad Eyeity ang Liakifliges 969,107,343 1,211,9580,8148 8,973,863 1 ﬁﬁ ﬁﬁZA ’"

Pl potes to the Finmneral Statements forw an integral part of these Fianneint Staicnnts,

s Finsnciid Sratemonts lave been peapaced in compliance with the reguirements of the Companics Act No 67 af 2007
-
-
-
o ~
a/"“%\‘ o

sAOCE e respossible for the preparation and prasentation of the Flnancial Sttements,
chall of the Board,

1 g&j‘l)%

{‘wd) Atasish Bruekh

Parector

P8 Moy 2622 Colombe




MUAAMAL ESWARAN PLASTICS (PVH) LTD
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Forhe yoar ended 37 Muarch 2023
Group

Halanee as al 1 April 2021

Tatad Comprehensive Tacome for the Year

Profit for the vear

‘Fatal Comprehensive Income for the Year
Transuclions with Gwaers, Recorded Direetly in Bquity
Fioal dividend for 2020/2021

mh i dividad for 202122 Nowe 22,43

Yotal Transactivns with Oswness, Recorded Diveety in Equity

Bafance as w1 31 Maveh 2027

Balusee s a0 1 Aprid

Fatul Comprebensive facome for the Yoar
Protl oy the yes

Onher
Tatal Comprehensive Income for the Yew

comprehensive dwoms for e vear

Potad Tenssuctions witl Owaers, Recorded DBirecdy fn Fquity

Balnnee as 01 31 Mareh 2023

Compuny

Y

Balance as at t Apni

Fotal Comprebensive tncone for the Year

! rrehEnsive incon for the yoar
Tatal d] &mpwhcrwu toenme for the Vear

Transactons with Owoers, Recorded Bivectly in Eauity
Pl dividend for 202022071

Tty divideod for 202120022 (Nowe 221

Total Transactions with Owners, Recarded Piveetly in Eguity

Bubaree as uf 31 March 2622

soat b Apedt 2002

Fotal Comprefvnsive ncome for the Year
Profitior the fea

Cther comprahensive tucome for the v
Tott Comprehensive fncume for the Year

Tutal Terasactions with Uwners, Revorded Diveetly in Faui

Halance as a1 31 Maweh 2823

Stated Redained Towat
Capital Earnings
s, B, M,
20,006,000 GRE 31594 FHEg
1,371 334
- 104371,336
{20.800,000)
. {H0.000,0600)
20,004,006 T32,404,930 F4EA84,030

20,000,000

F22 404 90

UGV NNE

SUGLOTSIRY

06,075,787

LG 075,787

24,000,008 828 480,717 BA8,480,717
Stuted Redained Testad
Cugsital Earnings

{00, QG0 0

28,000,068

664,857,844

20,000,040

663,187,840

O304

T 43,050

01 A4S0

20,060,000

ThHo I3 800

TRE, 330,508




SELRABMAL ESWARAN PLASTIOS (VT LT D
STATEMERT OF CASH FLOWS

Civoup Lenspany
e the year ended 31 March, 2023 2022 223 a622
Ry, B, s, Hs,
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profi Before Taxatdon 174920214 120,504 401 157 395 W HIRL058 91y

izl}mfzz:wtzj:)r :

proviaticn on propeny, plent & couripment 42,820,196 4928 428214190
Asuuriisation of intangible assety 1335663 7?(} 182 H63
{ReversalyProvision for gratuity 11,397,861 {2,643 TEEQT ARG

10,876,891

Charge! (Reversal) of provision for inventories 2,476,637

ProvisionAreversaly for inspairment of wade ree I‘)in,‘k% (6B 1843
Lasss/ (Gaany on d lq;f pmgmu plant & equipmont (87.326) AR ES

SCHT Set Gitapais

R34

lised Exchange loss fom trade pavable (Note §.1)

(692,78
(99,664,792

(16,257,187)
79,137,293

?E'aw

(9AART 0913

454,464 132,380 434347
141,578,797 236,478,981 127845, 109

Az a0
84,259,119

(39957, 7563
204,493

fnere:

()“sum it related party reeny

Yaervase ot ade and other pay RER (2004657 874
i w rehaed party payable (5U71 R {870
Cast Uenerated from Operations {130, 290,543) {M( {15603

RPAS

Emplovee benedt paid

i1 patd {484

4613
£ i 1a% ad [EIR VR )
Net Cash Generuted from Operating Aviivities (197,306,717 Z(;‘LRSZ,&ZH (i‘) % (:éw‘) %‘q
e Plaws Trom Tavesting Aetivities
iton ol property, plant md LI (10067 4801 (26,900,650 (TOGGT 8

bl ussets 33 B
pertys plant and equipment 843,21 654 34%
| 16,257,187 94 487001 LA STE U
el gy WSt 4 i - (24,0778 G0 -
Mot £l from/ duved in} favesting Activities . GEE7THRY {HL157,683) Gl AL T52 (Eih?ﬁj(gi?‘")}~
Cash Flows from Flanaeing Activities
Pressdond paid {00 GO0 600 20,000,000 (60,000,000} EIRIL
Mt Casleowsed fn Pinanciog Aetivities I T T T ) (GOOUB000)  (20.008, smm'
Netfaerease fn Cash & Cash Fauivalents (198,728,861 230,674,040 (198,289,415}
Cash & codhy cquividenia st the bepinning of the year 381823514 343 130 87 583,296,632
Cush & Cash Equivalents at the end of the yoar{Noic 17) 6096652 SRL8I8 &1 3E8487.397

Fre nows W the Fioancohd Statereents farm an tiepral part of these Finanedn! Siatenwrnls,



NILKAMAL ESWARAN PLASTICS (°VT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPORTING ERTITY

ot

£.1 Doemicile and Legal Form

miltkamal Bswaran Plastics (P4 va‘ic) Limited (¢ rw Company'y is a limited lability company incorporated in and
damiciled in 511 Lanka. The registered office of the Company and the principal place of lmsnms is located a1 328,

Madapatha Road, Baiakeltera, Piltyandala.s

’i"éw Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group as at and the year ended 3
nd its subsidiary (together referved 1o as the “Group” and individually as "G
éni;}f pwned subsidiary, Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited.

I March 2023 comprise the Cornpany
iroup endties™), The Company has a

1.2 Principal Arfivities and Nature of Operations
Fhe principal activities of the Group were as follows;
Nitkamal Eswaran Plastics (Pv) Lid Manufacturing of injection molded plastic articles
and sofi

Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Pvi} Lid Importing and selling of all kinds of plagtic
articles

3 Pavent Fatty and Ultimate Parvent Entity
The Graup's parent entity and ultimate parent entity ts Nilkamal Limited, which is Incorporated in Tndia,
fod Number of Eniployees

The number of employees of the Group and Company as at 34 March 2023 wre as follow:

Group 135
Company 128 (20232 - 1333

I'he subsidiary Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (PvO) Limited did not have any ermployees ss at 31 March 2023,

2. BASBIS OF PREPARATION

25 Statesnent of Complianee
'Hw (’“’(.»rzt;(x}édzucd Pineneial Statements ol the Group and the separate Financial Statements of the Company, which
3 w Satarment of Financial Positdes, Statament of Profit or Loss and (.'.‘.011};“;ri:?hi:rm;i\fui WO, ammm’m
1o Pauity and Statenaent of Cash Flows together with accounting policies and notes 1o the
Statements of the Company and Group as al 31 March 2023 and for the yewr then ended hzm‘: %.x,c; 1y
rdance with Sri Laoks Accounting Standard for Small and Medium Sized - Entities (SLERS
5 w(! hv t‘w Institute ni” Chactered Accountants of St Lanka (GUASLY and comply with the requiveme
Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007 and amendments thereto

L2 Buasis of Messurement

The Consolidamed Finsncial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost bagis and applied consistently
with no a{ijmimf:m being made for inflationary factors affecting the Financial Statements, except foy the
retirement benefit Habitity for employee benefits recognized based on the Gratuity Act, in the Statement of

Financial Position.

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the tasis that the Group would comtinue as o
eeable future.

swing concern for the fores



NILKAMAL ESWARAN PLASTICS FVTYLTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 Comparative Figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been rearranged to conform with the current year’s presentation

A4 Functional and Presentation Curreney
Allvalues presented in the Financial Statements are in St Lankan Rupees (Rs.) unless otherwise indicated,

Use of Estimate and Judgment
& preparation of the Finaucial Statements i confor ity with SLERS for SMEs requires me iagement to make

3

jmiwtmz s, estimates and assumpiions that a ffect the application of accounti wpo!muamiihﬂwpsme bamouls
of ussets, labitii

ities, income and expenses. Actual c*cstsita may differ from these estimates.

Lstimares and unde lying assw nptions are reviewed on 1 an ongoing basis, Revisions (o ac

fed

vecopiized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods alfected.

ceolnting estimates are

Information about evitical judgments in a pplying accounting policies that have the most significant effeet on the
amounts ceeognised in the Financial Statements is ine luded in the following notes:

= hmpairment of financial assets (Note 38.43
o dmpairment of Non-financial assels (Note 3.10)

°  Current taxation (Note 3.3.a)

& Deferred mxation angd wilivation of tax losses (Note 330
@ Measwrement of ;mp;m,c benefits (\\o EREY

#  Provisions and cont gencies (Note 313 and Note 3143

46 Materiality and Agpr cgalion

wely material class of similar ltems is presented separately in the Financial Swtemerns, Rems of @ disshvilae
nature or nction are presented s eparately unless they we hnmaterial,

<2 Assessment of implications of covnomic crisis of Svi Lanka and Going Coneers Basis uf Ac Counting

wri Lanka has been facing a f{oreign exchange crisis due to adverse ecconomic condi tong which have groves
oI acute Lo severe acute during the financial yvear that ended on 31 Mareh h2023. The Government of Sri L anks
is daking various measures 1o contral the owtflow of foreign exchange riserves of the country ineluding
zmnk dons o0 several imports and outward fermi; tanees. Desplle the Gavernment's measures 1o control farie
exchange owtllows, the continual d deterioration of fored B reserves J8 putling pressuee on the exchange rale

depreciate in the market,

CONONC

Further, there s seill significant untertainty over how the prevailing economic crisis will npact the Company's
Business in future periods and customer demand for its products in retail and industrial n wrkets. Management
fis iilit:‘@ii)?‘” a‘ﬂm%cim difforent scenarios consit dering o m;md of 12 months from the date of authorization of

s Hinancial stutements. The assu mptions modelled are based on the estimated potential impact of
conditions (md regulations ‘md expected levels of comsumer demand, along with ma wmgement’s proposed
respanses over the cowrse of the period. This situation he a5 n0Tyel put severe pressure on the Company s Hauidity
position,, Mevertheless, the ¢ ompany is continuously wmonitord ing the conditions to ensure a simooth flow of

operations and working capital,

i

8 N0 tneedtainty rearding e settfements of esternal labilities during the next 12 months the due

?’Sz‘si«:‘&f e the Company’s ?iquid'ty position as at the wp{ss{mw date, the Board of i)mazmx has assessed tha
W i
u 1 authorizing these financial statements,



NILKAMAL ESWARAN PLASTICS (VDY LD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accordingly, the Board of Directors has a reasonable confidence level that the Company  and Group have

adequate resowrcss to continue in operation for at least the next 12 months and that the going concern basis of
accounting refnains appropriate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOQURTING POLICIES

3.4, Basis of Consolidation
The accounting policies set out below have been applicd consistently to all periods presented inthese Financial

o

Statemants, unless otherwise indicated. The accounting policies have been applied consistently by the Group.

Subs Lm ies are those enterprises controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power
directly or indirectly, w govern the financial and operating policies of that enterprise 50 as to abtain ben B‘{ﬁ
from its activities, In assessing control, potential voting w»iztx that presently are excreisable are faken it
account. The Financial Statements of subsidi fary is mciudui i1t the Consclidated Financial Staements from the
date that control effectively commences until the date that control effectively ceases. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed when necessary (o align them with the policies adopted by the Company,

'

Adl companies in the Group have a common {inancial year, which ends on 31 March,

Loss of Control

iterests as \xs’E mt othor co E“‘;aamcms oi uwzl;‘ ,E ed 1o ’iin xmwhxn\ /\m %%!’1 % SO éci CHarks

of control 18 recopnis i i1 profit or foss. if H (mm;; retains any inferest in the gu‘s\/smz sutfasichs
mterest is nreasured m fair vatue af the date that control is lost, Subsequently it s aecounted for
accounted investes of in accordance wath 1 1 Croup’s Accounting Policy for financial assels (see Acco

Policy 3.9 below) depending on the tevel of influence retained.

i1 ey

uiiing

Trausactions eliminated on consolidation
frtra-group balances and trapsactions, and any unseatized pains and losses or income and experues arising frows
the intra-group ransactions are eliminated in preparing the Consolidated Financial Stalements.

Accounting for investment in subsidiaries

When sepamie Financial Stulements are §}1Lp;§m§ investments in subsidiaries are accounted for using the co
method, lnvestnients in subsidiaries are stated in the Company’s Statement of Financial Position st less
accumulated inpairment {osse

S.

3.2, lmmgu { micm“, Trausactions

Tye sion currencics are translated o the lunctional currency at the exchange rates af tie dates of
the transactions, Monetary assets and Habilities denominated in forelgn currencies at the reporting date e
retranslated o the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.

The foreign currency gain or [oss on monetwry frems is the difference between amortised cost i the functional
curreney at the bepinndng of the Huimi, adpusted for effective inferest and payments duting the period, and the
sunortized cost in foreign currency transtated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.

iff»;){oi*m curreney differences arising on refranslation are recognised in profit or loss, Nos-monctary tems thal
re meastired in terms of historical cost in a {oreign cunrency are tranglated using the exchange rate at the dine
m the transaction,




NILKAMAL ESWARAN PLASY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL 8TATE

CS (VT LD
MENTS

A3, Income Tax Expensc

income tax expenses comprise of current & deferred tx expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss
wnd Giher Comprehensive income,

{a} Current Taxation
The Group's lability to 1axation has been compuied in accordance with the provisions of the Inland Revenue
Act No. 24 of 2017 and subsequent gazetie notifieations,

(bt Deferved Taxation

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all temporary differences as at the reporting date between the tax buses
of assets and labilities and their respective carryving amounts for financial 1 reporiing purposes. The balance in
the deferred taxation account represents income tax applicable to the difference belween the writlen doxm vakies
for tax purpose of the assets on which tax depreciation has been clahued and the net book value of such asset.
ofiset by thie provision for employee benefit which is deductible for tax purpose ouly on payiment,

Deterned tax assets, including those related 1o temporary tax effect of income tax losses and credits available o
be carried forward are recognized only to the extent that it is probable th at future taxable profi w zi e available
against which thc assets can be utilived. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

4. Events occurring after the reporting date
The materiality of the events oceurring afier the reporting date have been considered and appropriaie
adjustments o or disclpsure Tave been made in the Financial Statements where necessa

VTS AND BASES OF THEIR VALUATION

LA Property, Plant sud Equipment

a3 Cost and Valuation
Property, plant & equipment are carried at cost less accumulaied depreciation, less acaimulated npainment
losses i any.

Costincludes expenditure that is directly attributable 1o e acguisition of the asset. The cost of seif-c

ludes the cost of materials and dircet labor, any other costs divectdy auributable 1o bringing the asse
condition for its intended use, and tie costs of dismantiing and reroving the Hems and restoring tie sile on s
they are focated, Where an item of property, plant and cyuipment comprises major components having &iff

uselul lives, they are accounted for as s separate items of property, plant and equipment.

Hems of property, plant and z"}m praent are derecognized upon disposal or when no fintore ceonemic benelis we
expected from s use. Ay gain or losses rising on dc»mcugmtmn of the asset 1s included in profit or loss in the
veur the asset is derecognized.

§)} @xsizwqtmaf Cost
Expenditure fncurred to replace a component of an iteny of praperty plant and equipment that s accounied for
;amidv imcluding major fnspection and overhaul costs, is sapitalised. Other subsecuent m’pcmiiizsrc it
cu;w alised only when it increeses the future econemic benefits embodied in the tem of property, plant and
equipment, Al other ey expen diture is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Conprehensive
Income as an expense as incurred.

¢} Deprecistion
The provision for depreciation is caleudated by using stratght line method on all property, plant aud ¢ <mz;
f order (o write ol such amounts over the following estimaied useful economic lives by equal instathvent

1o
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Buildings on Frechold Land 20 years
Plant and Machinery 9.67 years
Moulds 617 vears
Office £ qummu‘u A years
Computer Equipment and Software 3 years
Furaiture and Fiitings 10 vears
Motor Vehicles S years

Frechold land is not de preciated,

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use, e when it is in the focation and condition necessary

for it 1w im capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Depreciation of an asset ce

di[icl of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale (or included in i disposal proup thay is ol
wid for sale) and the date that the assel is derecognized.

" residual values and usetul lives are reviewed, and adjusted i appropriate, at the end of cach FepOting

The
periad,

iy bmpairment of Property Plant and K quipment
The carrying value of prope Aty plant and equipment is reviewed for impadrmaent when events ar c%m s in
clrcumstances indicate the cartying value may not be recoverable, {f any such indication exis ¢ the
carrving value exceed the estimated recovetable amount, the assets are written down 1o thcir mazmm‘abfsx
amount, Impairment fosses are tecognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
suless it reverses o previous revaluation surpius for the same asset,

S0, Intangible Asseiy

Adl compuler soflware cosis incwred, Heensed for use by the Group, which are not integrally related 1o assoriate
hardware, and can be clearly identified, refiably measured and 1t is probable thar they witl lead 1o fuwre
economic benefits are included in the Statement of ] inancial Position under the category nangible Assets and
varried at cost less sccuniuated amortization and accumulated impairment losses if any.

#)  Subsequest Expenditure
Expenditure incurred on iman gible assets are capitalized only when it increases the future coonomic benefiss
crabodied in the specific asset (o which if relates, Albother expenditure is expensed as incurred.

B} Amortization

Itangible assets are amortized on a straight Hne basis over a period of 5 years except goodwill in the Statement
sf‘!“w(ﬁ' or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income from the date when the asset is availabie for e, pver the
sest estirnate of s usefis] economic life.

3.7, Leased assely

Leased in s of which { the Group assumes substantia iy all of the risks andeu\' wds of ownership are classified
as Hnance leases. On initial recognition, the feased asser is measured at an mount equal 1o the Tower of i3 fair
value und the present value of the minimum Jo ase payments. Subse (gumi to ditdal recognition, the asset s
accounied {or in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to property, plant and equipment.

Other feases are operating leases and are nof recognized in the Group™s Statement of Finsncial Position.

3.8, loventories

’i’xvi:i;z&}via’\' are valued at lower of cost or net realizable vatue, after making due allowance for obsolete and slow
noving items, Netrealizable value is the ¢ price at which fnventories can be sold in the normal course of bustneas

after zdémvm” for cost of realization and/or cost of convession from their existing state to saleable condition




MILKAMAL ESWARAN PLASTICS (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Raw Materials - Atactual cost on first-in fivst-out (FIFO) basis
Finished Goods - AL the cost of direct materials, direct labor and an

appropriate proportion of Tixed production overbieads based
on normal operating capacity

Work in Progress « based on the standard costing which included ail direct
expenditure and production overheads

Consumables and Spares « At purchase cost on first-in frst-out (FIFO) basis
{i0o0ds in Transit - AT purchase cost

39, Finapelal Asgsets
A financial instrument 15 a contract that gives rise to a (inancial asset of one eniity and a financtal Halility or
eguity instrumernt of another entity.

59,1 bnitial recognition of Ginaucial assets and Habilites
Crroup shall recognises o financial asset or a financial Hability only when the entity becomes a party o the
cortractual provisions of the instrument,

282, {nitinl measuremeoent
»\ Bben a financial asser or financial lability is recognised initially, Group measures it al e ransaction |
(inctuding transaction costs) unless the arrangeiant constinges, in u,i‘u.i. o financing transaction, A {inuncing
wansaction may take place fn cormection with the sale of goods or services. for example 1§ ;B;zygmni is defered
boyond normal business terms of is financed at a e of interest that s not a markel rate, 1 the arang Y
sitides a financing transaction, the entity shall meusure the financial assct or finanvial ha
vatue of the furare paviments disceunted at a market rate of interest for 2 shmilar debt justrument.

Sin wh the fprosant

S5.3, Subscguent measurenient
Atthe end of each reporting period, (nuu; measures financial instruments as follows, without any deduction Jor
wansaction costs the eptity muy ingwe on sale or other disposal,

s Dbt instrmnents (}mii be measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, Cash 2
inslruments that are classified as curtent assets or current labilities shall be rocasured at the undiscouny
amount of the ca \h or ether consideration expected to be paid or received (e, net of inpairmientd unle
arvanpement constinues, i effect, a financing transaction Hohe arpangement constitutes a fing
transaction, the Group shall measure the debt instrument at the prosent vatue of the fulure payme
discounted at a nuirket rate of fnterest Tor a simdtar debt instrumaent.

o Jrvestments B shares shall be measured at falr valoe with changes in fair value recognised in profit or toss.
For shares traded Iiv an active market the best evidence of falr value is the quoted price for those shares in
that wetive market,

receival

Trade apd other veceivabies

Trade and other reecivables and due from related parties are inlially recognized at cost. Trade
otiter receivables are stated at the amounts they are estimated to realize net of impairment for b
recetvables,

sad and doudbn b

i receivables extend beyond the normal credit torms, those receivables are messured & amortized vost using
the effective ntereat rate at the ond of each reporting period.

Cash and Cash 1 ;u&wﬁm%i";
Cash and cash eqnivalents are cash in hand, dentand d‘;;m sits and shost-torm highly liquid mvestmenss, veadily
convertible © known amounts of eash and subject © insignificant risk of chunges in value.

£z



NIL EQ&MAE ESWARAN PLASTICS (PVT LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the purpose (‘rf"‘%iaiemf:m of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents cousist of cash in hand and deposits in
banks net of owstanding bank overdrafis, Investments with short maturities Le. three wmonths or less from the
date of acquisition are also teated as cash equivalents,

394 Impairment of inancial assets measured at cost or ainoriised cost
L\'i the end of each reporting period, an entity shall assess whether there is objective evideace of bupairment of
any financial assels thal are measured at cost or amortised cost, I there Is objective evidence of fmpairmany,
the entity shall recognize an impairment Joss in profit or loss immediately. Objective avidence that » financial
asset or group of assets 5 impaired includes observable « iam that come (o the attention of the entity about the
{oss events,

{

3941, Measurement

"i"hc (’}mup measure an impainoent loss on {inancial essets measured at cost or wnortised cost as the differenee
en the asset’s carrving mmnount and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the assel’s
"zﬁ effective interest rate., 11 such a financial asset s a variable Interest rate, the discount e formeanving
v impairment foss is the curent effecuve interest rate detenmined under ihe contract.

395, Derecognition of » financial asset
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual righis (o the cash flows from the financial s
expive or it wansfors the vights w0 reeeive the contractual cash flows I a ransaction in which substantally

risks m%d rewards of ownership of the {inancial asset are transferred or in which the Group nelther transiers noy
retaing substantslly all visks and rewards of ovwnership and it does not retaliy control of the financial assce

3100 bmpalement of Nou-fluancial assets

The carrving amounts of the Group’s non-linancial assets such as deferred fax asseis wo reviewed at
rcpwiimi dute to determine whether Ehem i any indication of Tmpaioment. 1¥ any such indication exl hen the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated, For intangible assets that have indefinite vseful Hives or that are not vt
available for use, the recoveralie amount is estimated each vear at the same Hme,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-gencrsding unit iy the greater of fts value in use and s falr v mm
lesy costs o selll I assossing value in use, the e stimated future cash flows are discounted (o their present vaju
using o pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessmenis of the tume value of money and the ris
specilic 1o the assed. Por the purpose of hupairment {esting, assets that cannot be tested individually are hmzsp
together into the smaliest group of assets that gencrates cash inffows from continuing wse tiad wre
independent of the cash inllows of ather assets. Impainient Josses are recognized in profit or oss,

LAABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Liabilites classified as Curvent Ligbilities on the Statement of Financlal Position are those obligations pavable
on demand or within one year from the veporting date, Trems cizassmfarzc as non-cureat Habilites are those
obligations, which explre bevond a perfod of one vear from the reporting, date,

Albknown Habilities have been secounted for in preparing the Financial Staements. Provision snd Habilities are
s"‘cewni;/e’i when the Group has zxi*g al or constructive obligation as a resull of past evenis aad itis probable that
nitflow of economic benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation

331 Employee benelits

{n) Defined Conlribution Pha - Buplovees® Provident Fond & Employees® Trust Fund

A delined contribution p an is a post-cmployiment benefit plan uider which an entity pays fixed contribations
inle an ’a;x]'n'z';wi wmployees’ Imv;ri“m Fund and to the Bmplovees” Trust Fund, and will have no legsl wr

i
constructive obligadon ?( ; ay further amounts, The Group contribules 12% and 3% of gross emehunents of
eniplovess as Provident FF und and Trust Fund contribution respectively,

t3



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LRAMAL ESWARAN PLASTICS (PVTY LTD

(hy Befined Benellt Plans— Retivement Gratuity
L defined benelit plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined comtribution plan.

Provision has been made for retiverment gratuities from the fivst year of service for all employees, i conformity
with SLERS for SMEs (Section 28- En ;ioyc* Benefits). The lability recognised in the Financial Statements §
respeet of defined benefit ;\Lm is the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the reporting date.
The computation of the provision is based only on Gratuity Act requirement, The Group measures t§w present
value of retirement benefits of gratuity annually using an ;nmmﬂy generated mode! based on fonmuda,
However, under the Payment of Uratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the Hability 1o an employes arises only on
completion of 5 yvears of continued service.

The Hability i5 not extemally funded nor actuarially valued.

3120 Nowderivalive financial Habilities

The Group inftially recognises debt securities issned and subordinated Babilities on the date that the
originated. Al other ffnancial labilities (including Habilities designated at fair value dwongh profitor to
recognised fnitially on the vade dite ai which the Group becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions
instrument,

Hhe Group derccognises a financial Hability whon B3 contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled o
IXPHIC.

Financial assets and Habilities are offset and the net amount presented In the Staiement of Financial Position
wher, aad only when, the Group has a Jegal right o offset the wmounts and intends elther 1o setile o0 2 nel busis
Or 10 e;zim the assel and sedle the lability simultaneousiy,

The Group has the following non-desivative financial hubilities: loans and borrowings, hank osordralls, and
tade and other payables,

Such financial Habilities are recopnised initially at fair value plus any directly miributable tansaciion o
subsequent o initial recognition these Tnanci al labilities are measured at antortised cost using the effeciive
interest method.

Trade payables

Trade pavables are oblipations on mc basis of normal credit terms and do not bear intereest. Trade pavables
denominated ina foreign currency are translated into Sri Lankan vapees using the exclange rate at the reponing,
date, Forelgn exchange gains or losses are insluded in other income.

3830 Provisions aud Habilities

A provision is recognised if, us a vesult of a past event, the Group has a present lepal or constructive obiigation
that can be estimated mm% Ty, anad it is probs xbl(* that an outflow of economic benefits will be reguired 1o :
e abligation. Prov %zmm ave determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pri<ax rute that
veflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks spesifie to 1ha i: xi)i%ézy, The

urwinding of the (Ssm;um is recagnised as finance cost.

Provisios for Warrantee Liubiliey

The Company offers warranties on Sofa producis on Hs own account and warranty is provided by g
warranty period of T year from the date of 3‘3‘.»1{’, for the fabric and 13 years from the date of sale for the frame. A
provision for warranty is recognised wher the underlying products are sold, The quantum of the provision is

{4



NILEAMAL ESWARAN PLASTICS (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

based on the historical experience. The said exiended warranty provision will be reversed upon expisation of
warranty period i unutifised as at that date.

The provision is included under other Habilities,
34, Contingencies and Capital Commitments

All material capital commitments and contingencies, which exist as at the reporting date, arc disclosed in the
respective notes fo the Financial Statements.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

315, Revenue Becagnition

Revenue s recognized to the extent that it is probable that the ceonomic benefits will fow 1o the Group and that
revene and associaied costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the

faiy value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and sales taxes and after eliminating
mif‘« within the Group.

The following specific eriteria ave used for the purpose of recognition of revenue.

{u} Bale of Goods

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities Is measured at the faly vadue ol b
consideration received or receivable, net of retwms, trade discounts and volume rebates,

Revenue from sale of gonds is recogaized when the significant risks and rewards of vwnership of the goods
hfm: passed 10 the buyer normally at the point of good dispateh; with the Group rel: aining peliher continuing
wnagerial volvement o the inuw usually associated with ownership, nor cﬁm ve control over the goods

% JIJ
iy Onliers

Oiher income s recognized on an aceraal basis,

Met gaing and losses of a revenie natwre on the ci;a;mxul of property, plast & equipment and other now-curient
assets including investnents are accounted for in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other (”mn;n’eimxswa
Income, having deducted from proceeds on disposal, the carrying amount of the assets and related seiling
CHPIONSCS.

Galng and losses arising Trom incidental activities 1o mado revenue generating activities and those arlsing from
a group of similar ransactions which are not material, ave aggregaled, reported and presented on a net basis,

316, Expenditure Recognition
(3 Operating Expenses

Bxpenses are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on the hasis of a
direet association between the cost incurred and the earning specific items of income. All expenditure incurred
i the running of the business and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment in a state of efficiency has
been charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income,



NILKAMAL ESWARAN PLASTICS (PVT) LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{h) Finance income and expenge

Interest income and expenses are recoguised in profit or foss using the effective interest methad. The effective

yerest rate s the rate Uat exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts or payments througl the expected
ife of the financial asset or liabilities (or, where appropriate, a shorier period) to the carying amotint of the
Tnancial asset or Habilities. When calculating the effective interest vate, the Group estimates future cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the finaneial instroment, but not imum credif osses,

§
]
IS
H

The eateulation of the effective interest rate includes all transaction costs and fees and points paid or received
that are an inlegeal part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include iperemental costs that are directly
attributable to the aequisition or issue of a {inancial asset or Hability.

{¢} Borrowing cost

All borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the pediod in which they are ircurred.

317 Related Pavty Transaelions

Dsclosires has been made in nrespect of the transactions in which one party has the Habiliy to control or exs

sipnificant influence over the financial and operating decisions/policies of the ather, ivespective of a prics being
charged.

4. Statement of Cash Flows

-3

The statement of cash flows has been prepared using the “indirect method™ in accordanes with LKAS 7 -
~Sintement of cash Hlows™

vilsde 1o Known

Cash and cash equivalents comprise short term, highly tiquid investments that ave readily com
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignilicant risk of changes in value, The cash and cash equivalents
include cash in-hand, balances with banks and short term deposits with banks.

ted as operating cash Tows, interest recelved ure classilied as investing cash Hows, while
ed as financing cash {lows for the purpose of presenting the statement of cush fows,

hiterest paid s classi{
dividends paid are class




SILWAMAL ESWARAR PLASTICS (PV LTD
\(}iku TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Company
For she year ended 31 Marel, 2623 2022 2023 2022
Rs, Rs. Rs, Ry,

A Hesenue
Local suley 458.367,001 1.842.994,566 $28.736,176 LA90 764470
Fxpart sales - 4 083,209 - i ;

1.347.077.37% R28.758
{24,982, 104 (9,431
849 J15,581 1,822,0958,6758 819,394,

{rade discounis

153 i wu s‘?mi)

6 Orber Income

Ciain/ (Loss) on dispesal of property, plant snd cquipment {235490) 57,326
Pividend income 56,150 -

244,803
A.6:47.001

fon reseeve b shares 1HERE

S887,744

% s-szcm,u of refundable deposits {Now 0.33

RART 748

6.3 This includes sales of seraps relating o Row Matenial. Sofa and other mventunaes,

Bowrd of Dirsetors, These wetimdable depos  obiained by the Usmpaay from distributors i 2008, im\xm p. i distbtors e not
st with the Company T fong taw, shos the Company de tod 16 wrste-hack the refisndable deposits paid by the disiributon sduri

62 Dusing Uie vear 2022, the Company wiute back refundable deposits feomn customers 2 ponesctive distributorsy wlh the approval of e
e
i

i FRIN

7 Pralit Prom Opecations

(Pvitics i+ stated after clurglag, Wl expanses including e following
olments Wit Nil Wil il

o i expURNLS
- M;ml an é sudit refated services 1,445,600 1,255,000 |18
ARGLH0

SG.A24.50

FOIVIDS

sion on property, plant and equipment 42820106

uon of intangbic wssets T4U,182 1236403
Freovision for impairment of tradke reccivables $56.540 (R
saly of provision for mventories (Note 4.1} 3933433 HAR LIRS
related cogls (Mote 7.2) 142,248,650 VRS RN 142.248.67

9.1 Deervase tn revenne has resulted in a decrease in distobution expense. These measures nclude reducing diairibups
Additionafly, due o e dicroasys o revenus, ryally praytient expas

ransport ¢lia

For st and rebsted vosis
- Saluries, wages & other relued cost P
~ Defined contribuiion gﬂ;xm ~EEE & BT i
- Preftued henefit plan vost {(Moje 20,03

P17, 784,040

TRA G40
’()H'J:J
97 B
L 48,6580
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Forihe year ended 37 darch,

8 Net Fasanes Income! (Hxgrense)
Vioaner tncame
e from Bvestimients in securities purchased wndsy cosale

W
(SR Tiite

fyoan Fosed [
fuvome frovn

ievast income

Intere Rutaed Pusds (0AL seourtess

Finunve tneeme

Varlad §

[Pyt Compag

0L3 piires 023 2072

Hs. RS, s, R,
69,1956 13,017,519

5401 0161 -

28,074, )i”’ A 1E0 0068

24% -
108 865,854 16,287,187

sush doponis
on ransiation of foreigs varrency i Notw 8.13

13“)2

Tatat Tinanee Expense

04,254,203

7,944

92,36

Ned Pinsuer Invome

43,5991 20

(7.1 18,949

% dmcome Tay Expeuse
Current Tax Hapense
3 91

o of current taxes in respect of prior vears

5353 from Ra '~"J‘)Z

EXRF SRR

$TH

Beferred Tax Uxpesse

114

baltees(Noe 19,7y

cressd G fia

54,224,324

F1841.472

{ 1 FEDE ARy

Eotal Incene Tax caxpense

63,844,427

16,433,068

w4 ReconcHintion of the Aceounthing Profit mint Tax on Covrent Yor

ety weeddud 34 March,

1

before anatin

5 ol oo
inwable
SNARHITE

CNPUHBCR

Craug

2082

132,369,783

2{)~M;<‘;i), Lﬁ‘!

SRS e eme-ttenest e

Taxadsde twcuine

899,664,793 16,387 18T
2 834.576 188,423,000

Tana

Cincome - Fax gl 30%

HRESS IO « ICTOst 1IC0ne -
i GO - dere

1%

Tasable fnconw

(LG H R AN TS

ttn(z §

Cuent o et 3

33,977 858 ARRO 30




STLACAMAL ESWARAN PLASTVICS (PVE LD
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For tive year ended 31 Muarel 2023

9 tugemn Tax Expense (Cont)

%% Changein Tas Rates

Ax provided for in Section 29 of Sri Lanka Aceounting Steadard for SMEs, currestiay Habilities {ass
sred at dee amount expected 10 be paid to {recovered from fax autboritics, wsing the fax rates (and tax taws) that have
shonld be niwasured at

<53 far the coerrent period and prio
i f

pededs shall be mes
frech enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the yeporting prrisd. Further, defared fax asses and Tisbilit
the tay rute that are expected 1o be ii;ﬁp fied in the period in which the wsset witl be realised or the Hability will be setded, based on the to
rate and tax lewsy that ave been encted or substandively epacied by the ond of the reporting period,

ueted by the )\§nmw ut Fingoee a change 1o the Tneome Tax Rate of the Compuny, from 18% 1o 30% was implemented with
rom 01 & October 2022 As par e pew tax rat legislared by the tnland Revenue Departrrent (Anmendiment) Act no 43 of 2

FETH hm apphicd 18% for the profit for the six months ended 30 Sepember 2022 and 30% the profits for the siy
pany P H {

4

the {

wpnths caded 31 ’“Lm!‘ 202

Fur teg e winded 31 Maech, 2023123 ”’{;iiﬁ
AN
‘y S22 ) R pAi VS TP
E,;f’“;: ,i/;f,.g praganz e 0
e 3amv0012
The apphieadle ax vates for (e Group is as follows

Nithamat Evwarais Plaseies (Pet) Lad (7 the Company )

Prodils from nunuiaciuring business (other than expentpiNoie 5% 1885
Prolipx {rom exporis 14%% {d%e
il sourees ol Boon 4% 249

Nifhaund Eswaran Morkeiing () Lid {"the Subsidiay”

3% 249% 2y
3y 1! plied the ew tax rate of 3% for the muaswroment of deforred oy adscls and Habilities as &t 31 Marcl 2025 20221 8%,

5 e

wiieht fs nppitcable 1 the main business aorivity of the corpany

[T

b Enenings per Share

The beaste profit per ordinuy share Is caloulamd by dividing the peafit foe she year atributabic o ardinury sharcholdors by the we

sverage samber of ordigiy shares, i imsue,

Draup Company
Fue sl year cwsled 31 Maielt | 223 36032 2023 2622
Prafs adier lexation atributable to
oedinany shacholders (Rs) 106,074,787 104,571,330 181,443,050
cd averge numbar of erdinary shares 15788064 | SFES00 {378.806G A60
Farpiopgs per Shiee (Rs.) G748 [T 44,258 KR
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NILERAMAL EXWARAN PLASTICS
SOTES TOTHE FINANC

VT LT
JAL STATEME \w

As ot 3 March,

11 Property, Plasd and Equipment (Cont)
111 Fully Deprecinted Asseis

Building

Prant and muchinery
Noulds

Offiee Equinment
Computer Lupipmesd
Furnituee and Fittings
Muator vehicles

Grougs

2023
3,

116,506,330

145100210
307791141
4,578,002
6,705,776

2443075
35,100,699

2022
.

6,788,954
2,443,178
27,592,047

2023
Ry,

116,306,33¢

P45 1002 i
07791148
A 678,002
6,705,776
2443175
35 100,0 ‘)‘?

Cany

Rawd Dovelopmoent 680,762 680,762 H80762 680,762
619,006,094 SA0482,370 519,@96&}4 S80,082,370
11,2 Besails of Frechold Lund of the Group
Lotativn Extent Dhwang Bty

Pate of Purchase

vor 338, Madupaha Road, Budaketinen, Pilivandala, 81
{oanhe

{
,
|

5 Acres

30 Nov 9%

Pswaran Plasic

Sitkanal

(e tad

1.3 Tigde Restrictionc on PPE

e {}mur }m x*lnrmn;mi foliowing property, plant and
wi Covlan Pl w Bank of India, Unlomba b

1 equipnient as seouritics for obtuining b

ranch.

ket fucibitie

=5 Tromy Comprweroiad Baak

Proseription of the asset N of the

ank

inetdicy

Reenrity valug

s,

huttding loeated at Nae 328,
sdaputie Road, Butakettara,

Commereid

Bank of Cevion

Pundt

fuc

sod and non-tund bused shon wrm banking
Higs - todal Re 295,000,000,

IR IR

a and frmmovable plany and

; State Bank of
s prei

fadia, Colombo

faciltties - (otal Ra

Fund based and non-fund based shost tenn banking
33, GO0.000/-

Tob Gperating Lease

raceording e the signed agreement b
ant inenie per month ks US1D 400,

oo Agred

For the peir gnded 34 March,

§2 Intangible Assefy

Computer Soffwaw

st

Asut LA

Acyuisitions during the your
As o 3 March

Aceumuiated Amortisation
Apsil

oilon during the vem
a1 31 March

Curywing Yalue as 8t M March

13 knvestment in Sabsidiavy

Yo ol holding

Nitlkamal Eswaran Mavketing (Pvt) Legd

fnvesten: in ordimay shases 135

ar she Company hus foased an fijocton mould whicl can prodice student chairs

Group

13,184,548

Hloonwd [

erween the parties, Reut income fas been agread o paid for

Llonipsny

24123
HE

PRI OTE

itedd buse

2 times

2422
HW

- A87 430 .
13,541,978 13,541,978 3BT
£3.345.657 12,408,475 {8
[ERRA FA0,182
13269320 {3, 0458,687 i3 Z()‘L?ei‘}
273,658 396,321 272654 V321
Cumpany A
Mo, of Sharves Yl
223 1623 2823 238
s, iy, 159 HE
10¢ 104 000 IRUEY
Hig HEY £400 148




MILKAMAL £Swar/
TOTHE FIN

NPLASTICS

VT LTD
ANCIAL STATEUMENTS

Az ar 31 March,

4 Inventories
Raw materials
Cioods in transig (Note 14,23
Packing maferials
Waork 1 Progress
Finished gends
Sani-fingled poods

Provision for slow movin

24,1 Provisien o slow maoving fnventories

2 fverdoriss (Note 14,

Group
2023
R,
153,451,754

piivY
Ry,

100,884,394
4168 334

Company

2032
s,

16, 884 394
9. TGS 250

4,614,251 :1. 441
4,864,604 1‘1” 247
R 109,872,193 ‘H JT87308 eé} £
064 14,649,683 12,330,064 {4
284 (»()/,‘245 244,649,487 239,914,663 197 1
1 {43,354 326) {30,877 6603 (20,381 8923 (9 3451
241,282,917 213,771,814 219,532,891 188,33 ‘},ﬁ

4.1 Sovement in Provisihn for Siow Muviag Inventuries

datance

Uthe begining of the year
ovision for the vear
datunce vs ot the ond of the

Yiar

VLD Pravisies CUstegury wise
AW N
“king materialy

S

m{irﬁ:

rowards have bees a

dute. Goods in ransi
the unport resttietions on nor-essential o,

¢ Croup has martgaged s stocks, with 2

3,877,669 0,994, 9,305,002
13,476,687 3933, HLE76 891
43,354,326 HLETT.669 20,381,892

36877 660

0,381,897

G 805403

it have bees recorded hased on the eration stipping tarms and the 3ills o1

1gaument over rad

« Deblors, to abtain bankig

red 1o the Grougs before the seportng dite dhough the refevant items huve not
w af 31 March 2023 fncreased compared 1o the year 2022 nainly d

ading dutwes of Bnpo

¢ LD gt oS i cost and

Feconed

thee renovid

wiehases whore the

P <
Leir 13w

Natne of the Bank

Facility Securily Valse | Speur m Sl -
Campans (mmg
s, s,
Bark of Cevion PO Fund based and non-Tuid bused short temm {aeiiitios 74,600,000
ank of Indiy, Colorne branely 44,800 4
GH.4000,800 125,000,000
Grogp Cumpany
Axar 3 March, 2423 422 24123 iz
Rs. R, Ks. R,
18 Trade and Qther Receivahies
Financhd
frade receivnbios (Naie 1513 179.156,532 119,065,978

eans

fu edable Depusits

Non-fiuracial
Vil Added Tax recaverable

¥ s,;mmwzs and advances

A 3 patid o supphiers (Now 15,3
peabios

Trade and Qiher Reeeivaliles

{81 Trade Receivables
e veveivables - reloted partios (Notwe 15,1 1}
Prade teceival

fes - other

Peovizion for saparment of trade receivibles (Nowe 15.1.1)

4.960.957

29677
4444344

087 640
4911886

134,846,356

185,930,353

128,038,419

182,667,901

%‘é« ‘)1

247 460 i€ 247 460
T8R0T Aek 4,778,291
U6E18630 206,12718 132,813,710
4,805,607 5,840,310 4,803,607
7020723 171920279 115,151,
(L899511)  (R6S3237) (1 80148
20827819 177056340 {jvg 065 518




SILKAMAL ESWARARN PLASTICE (W LD
HOTES TOTHE Y NCIAL STATEMENTS

Giroup Company
As ar 31 March, 2023 20322 2023 2022
s, {LER s R,
15 Erade and Ofher Receivables (Cont)
15.4 Trade Receivables (Contd

1541 Trade receivables - related parties

Giond Yahe Eawaran (Pvi Lud 4,667,607 & 445,089 4,667 607 GRS ARG
Fawaran Brothers Bxpont PviLad 134,000 21,804 38,000
CGood Value Bswaran Worldwide (Pvi) Lud - 413421 - 41% 423

4,808,607 5.580,310 4,805,607 35,208,514

§5.1,2 Provision for impairment of Trade Receivables
anlonae as ol the beginging of the year 2,683,250 3,519,995 2,630,703

sel VA harge during the year {095,123) 156,546 {683, 184)
U during the vear (Nowe 151.2.2) (58,622) (1833285 {37 0353
Natance as al the end of the yeor 1,899,511 2653286 1891404

14.5.2.8 The Group hus provided for impairment of trade receivables bused on the debtors ageing as per the Groups debitoy provisioning
pofiey.

15.1.2.2 Tie Groug has swritter-nif fong outstanding debiors with the approval of Board af Diyecioss.

Sy ar 31 Muarely 2423 2023 2023 242z
ity HEN s s,
15,3 Subsidies receivable from Treasury of Sri Lanky

Ciroas Receivable Bab 4,104,607 4,164,007 4,164,607 4 16406087
Less, Provision for mipalamon (Rote 15.2.1) (I64,607) 4164607 (41610607 (4 151607)
15,71 Provisten for impairment of spbaidicy receivable

fAak is wt the beginaing of the vear 4,164,607 4064607 4 ied, {n)

5 st the ond o the vear 4,164,607 $,1 64607 3,504,607

3 Agdvaunees paid to supphicys

» frevoice Value Advance Paid Lo o ,
ST tom ( ft}) ’ \Z"}::D ’ LIS Apwant ] Pald o LER
i i
fng Dali Monid Co . e . o B s
1 {Note 153.1) t ser of hgection Mould 3,508 RN 208 By R
Two back design {njentio
Plastic Compan _‘\iz;‘:{’” ek design Injestion £11,000 33,200 203
164,500 49,350 115,050

Asdvarees pald 1o supplions - oflers

14.3.1 During June asd July 20220 advanes
dotiar shortage snoountered sc:sils:sg the b

paid o 1he above suppliers were recalled and refunded to cancel the above purchas:
fanee payitest. The company has rocebved the eefunds,

s at 31 March, Group [ORCISPRETAS
16 Belated Party Reeeivablhes 2023 2022 pLyA W2
Mikamal Limited - Owits - -




MiE %“%\M% CSWARAN PLASTICS (PVITTRTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMERTS

Asat 31 Maech,

17 Cush and Cash Eguivalents

Casho baed
1 af bank
Tnvestrent on Units 8 CAL Fixed ncosse Pund

RO snvesunents in S Lankan Covermupst reasury bitls

frvesinent in fixed deposits witlo dess than three
womths nalunity

fjorest eeeedvables

Group
2033 2022
Rs. s
434,470 455,239
3,518,019 11,880,938
40,000,000 «

LE9, 300,000 569489317

Company
23 922
Rs. s,

S24.470
7 854,360
413,000,000

156,006,000

145,652,690 - 143,652,090
3,990,392 - 4,855,696 -
F,096,652 SH1828,5814 JE5.487.247

Cash & Uash Equivalents in the Stateaent of Cash Flows

300,896,657 81,825,514

Unmpany [ Groug
Mo, of shaves

18 siated Capital
Halance as a1 Apad
Palaor ws o 31 March

The holde
it Cowpany.

Ag gt 31 Marcly
f@ Drefereed Tuvatfon

D torred i asset (ofe 1Y)
o tay Habiliy €

191 Deleryed Pay Agset

atanes o af the bogiustng of the vear

Arauie reveril ilurding vhee pear do prafit ar loss
Aot (g & during the yow

Bayract front the change in fus rate (Rote 194}

Tofal nesouit reversed ducing the yoar tu profit v loss

fafunes gs at ihe vad of Year

19,2 Beferved Tax Liabitity
Ratwiee o the beginning of the year
LARIGIIE 3OS

Aaount Ve
fpact frons e Clu

wed dering the yeer 1o prafit or losy

o durisng the vear
en by rate {Nate 194}
FPotal antount roversed dirkoyg i ven to prafit ov fos

Hatance as i the ond of Year

2023 24122

3 3 1,378,800

20,000,800

1,578,804

243 430,000 0,000, 0

Group
223 222
Hs, R,

1"3 (’)L 5«'{)\}

s of ordinary shares are entited 1o receive dividonds as dectared Tram timwe 1o time and are entitied 1o ene vote poy share 3

Comipeny
2033 2
iR, s

j,t}{),; 174

25, f\?(s 6 ﬁ

21,080,308 TG

{A0.254.091 13,909,

14,086,470 -
(2,167,621} 13,909,741 13038462
G512.884 PARC IR 4512884 20,790.2258

25675684

GIBLET Y

35,349,837 ISGT5084

1.3 Dhofernd tus nssets and Habilites are altributable w the following;

As e 37 Shwreh,
Deferved Tax Liabilities
Praperty, plont & equipsag

Proferved Tay Assels
Paiploves |

Tax Credit on Untealised Exchange losses

Set deferred fas Huhitity

sppficabli tax rain {ate §9.4)

Group
2023 24327
Tewporary Tax Bilect Temporary Tux Hfect
Bifferenve Differenc

s,

1E7.831,991 LR
117,831,791 48,340,837 i 1wx {2,684
LS (9.312,884)

- -~ { . . .;‘?)
(31,7096 13) (9,512,884} (30,186,002

T %

24




NILRAMAL ERWARAN PLASTICS (VT LT
NOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year anded 33 Mureli 28023
19 veferyed Tasation {Cond)

£9.3 Defered tax ssaets and Habilitics are attribwiable to the following:

Campany

et 3 Mavch, JATER] 2022

Temporary Tus Fifeat Tempurary Fax f{fert

thfference fhfference
treferred Tax Linbilities
Peaperty, plant & egquigaont 117,831,791 3% 349,837 142,642 689

117,831,791 35,349,537 142,642,089

Preforred Tax Avsals
Frapl benefis (31,709,612 (9,512,884 {40,086,003;
Tax Credit on Usrestised Exchange osses . {15, T

(31,700,612 {9,412,884) (115,581,250

Net deferred tax Habilite “m?&if' X
Applivabie tax pate (Note 9.2 snd 19.4) 3% FRO%

P9 Change in tax rale

at ihe

suld b moasured

faka Accounting Standard for Sails defer and Hubilie

4 will he realised of the Hability will be satthed, haved on tha (

As provided for fin Section 29 of 8¢

tax rate that are expested to by applicd in the perod n which the a4

canal 1ax Jaws) that have heen enacted o subsiantively enneted by the end of the roporting peviod.

¢ @ change W the etmne Tax Kate of the Company, Fom 18% o 3075 was insple
§ by the fnband Rovenue Depanneat (Amendment Act nu ol 2422

As instnated by the Mintsoy of Fin
ot fromt st Ootaber 2022, As por the sow fax rale k

sontad with

{Group Cumspuns
Fer the ywae vaded 31 Maek, 2023 2022 2423 P Exd
Re, s, s, FLEN
24 Faaplayee Beaslits
39,1 Befined Contribintion Plaus
Hinpdoyens' Provident Pueud
Emplovers contribution 13,274,294 13319020

Uinplovess’ condribution 8549527 $.879,347
28702

Paptovens’ Trust Fund IYTLE

20,3 Defined Benelit Plan

v compuiation of pravision s based anly on Uratuily Act requirarient as recommended by SLERS for SME 5
“Hamplover Benetis”, The presenst vahie of the defined bonefit obligation I3 determined by dispounting e atimated ity fluws

s tat are depomingted in the curreney e whic the benefiss will be patd, and Gt have s 1o maturity approxinaing

nloresd s

o the e of the nohaed abiliy,




MLKAMAL ESWARAN PLASTICS (VD) LTD

MOYTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Gruup Compuuy
For the year eaded 31 March, 2023 24k J423 182
Ha. Ry, K. Ws.
2 Employes Benefits (Conil)
202 Dedined Benefil Plan (Conl)
20.3 Movementin the Present Valee of Defiocd Bunefit Obligations
Batutue ot at the begianing of the vear AL0R3,943 43,170,803 406,085 .0943
(Reversaty charge for the yeur #.440.843 (8,500,817 Ga40.843
Intwresi cost 57018 6442005 FIR70E
fpact fros the change in retirement age {Note 20.5.1) - {370,740 - {374 agy
Beneiis paid (19,974,193) {449,343 (19.974,1933 (A A
Balanee as at the end of the yenr 31.96%.612 44,086,003 31709612 S0 0HG,60

A4 Provisivn Recognised in the Statement of Peofit or Loss and Other Cotpreficasive Income

(Reversaly charge for the year 440,843 {B5G6,817%) 6,440,843

fpact from the Change in retirement age (Note 20.5.1) - {570.748) -

Tiierest cost 3187018 (5,442,605 157008
11,597,861 (2,633,559} 11,597,861

HLE Primcipal Actuarial Assumptions

fHzeount rage {8.00% 15.25%%

Stalf wrnover rate 16.00% i2%

¥ ) nent Fate 15.00% 134

Retiioment age o G

Conmpany Clonmgtany
As et 31 Marcts, 2023 222 20623 2422
e, Rs, R, He

2 Veade and Other Pavables

Fisangial

Ve Bles« redated partios (N 20 1) 273 20,766 300

frade pa 3 - other (Note 21.2) 11,986,351 DG 347

security deposits fionn tade debitors 1.100.000 1,100,004 RR i

13,089,316 Jo3,950,732 288 473,793

Nane francing

SAINCS
¢ Added Tax pavable
Advances from caplovees W purchase motor bikes

LSRR

Advaucss fron customers

3

9.8

3 pavables \ v
47, 008,66- 32,558,986 A6, 426,828
44,909,279 B47,859.39 458,243 446 333,901,322
A0 Tende puyvabdes ~ redated parties
Pédhaenad Linded (Nowe 21.2) . 20,766,390 . 303 Fise M
Lood Vidue Fowsan (v Lid 2075 . 5a7E .
FHIN 20,766,390 28735 2L T66,390

212 Teade payables have sdeersased duving the yeu ended 31 March 2023 due s availability of dollar Bauidity and company pand off

Pravious Qug




NILRAMAL ESWARAN PLASTICS (PVD LD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMERNTS
Liroup Comepany
A i 31 Mureh, 3043 622 2023 3622
s s, Hs Ra.
32 f{r;‘ taied Purty Payables
ithamal Limited - Royalty Payabic 1728548 6,800,416 1728540 a4 1E
;ﬂ amal Lingited - Dividend Payable (Nete 221} - i - 3300
Dividend Payablo 1o Close Family Meubirs of KM (Note 22,13 « 22346 - K3ty
i,728.54¢6 50.800.410 1,728,830 ir(yﬁﬂﬁ $16
328 The Croup has declarad an interin dividend of s, 60 Mn duripg the year 20217 a unably © rommitted the

027, Hosvever, the Group has
d

i
wid amount bas been romitid dmmn 10e GTORY vOar on

o e fureign exchange etists in Sei Lanka during the year 2002 The sa

Graup Compaiy
2023 2432

s

As at 31 March,

23 Cuaerent 'V
fatance 2 ining of the year
£urrent tax for th e {ote 9.1
iOvorvander provision of current taxes in prive ye IERE
Paviments imade during the vewr {34
sgpitsd ouryent 1
Balraes sy at the enad of the year (Note .2) 843
23,1 Pusring B year. tere 15 a adjusiment miade due Lo wsler provision during the vem 31 March 2022, whicls bas iy pacted 1o the vairnt year
grovision by R FI64703
i fmvestaiesd
Praning e poviod dhe compaty has imade vestinent equiry shares through Cupital Allianee Seg urilies (1) Lid wha's s i Pmconher
Leknbo Steck Pxvhange,
. AL43.2023 Purchase Nugiber of Fadr vadue of 34 . i1 Revatuation
Cinnpany X ; X Purehave price o
strge pries pvice shares the shares gaii{ions)
1140 200,000 8.200,000 4,873,854
(5 .00 63.21 343,000 3,250,000 ERRRGH
; i44.35 0,000 5,600,600 8,973,952
3348 {20,000 2440080 ERG R
57 RURVUH 27450006 2642946
1269 15,000 1842500 103584 (]
5980 G067 35,000 2,096,500 22582 [EEROH
210,000 24,674,000 24,456,472 £77508
25 Costingent Linbilities

Therd WCre e 5i

SEHCICH S

A1, Litigation

sud elain

ficant contingent Habilides owstanding s w1 the repovting daie whirh

require adjustments oy disclosurcs

sy e T

Thors v ne perding Higation or claims 8 o G veporting date,

26 Llapital Commiiments

There wore no vapilal comedipicnts @8 ot e reporting date,

flelated Party Tramsactions

[

e Company varvisd ol transactions in e ordinary Cowrse af its business with parties whe s defined as redated parties ss por the seeion 33 of

St Lanks Aceounting Staadards for SME - Related Party Disclosuna’.

270 Parent and URbate Parent Party
The Cranpany's mmedine and wltinale contealling party is Nilkemal Lirntied which i fncorporsted i Tadia



.“%Eﬂ ESWARAN PFLASTICR (PV 3‘)! H)
TG THE FINANCIAL STATEME?

Z’\‘O'i‘%

For the pear ended 3§ March 2023

25 Related Parly Transactions (Cont)

273 ey Munugement Pevsonnel (KAMP)

dvitios of the

wit P r%’)md LMY sre those persares having auhorily and respansibiliny Tor plansing, directing sind controthng the z
disectly

Company diectly o

N

AR I RO

The Cowmpany b
i

s idenified the Board of Directars of the Company. Hoard of Directors of the Parent sud other mamt
wito hold signifieant authorty and 1o H

onsibitity Tor plantong, diresting and conraliing the entity's activities as KM af the Company.

M of the C

27.2.1 Compensation of Key Maoageraent Porsonuel

spany are alse KMP of e Group.

Giraup Company
For the year unded 31 Morch, 2023 2523
Rs, R,
Short v benelits 17,761 887 FEIG1L8ET
}m? <:m; foy nmt Benelns -

’i snshy menbons of KMP

17,761,887

17,761,887

¢ personiwt

ay patd to Rey s

NG x‘zux: pavinents such as post employments bene{its, eomination benefiis and share based paymems ave §
irtg the year.

fones e bee

e b the Directors of the Company
273 Transactions with Redated Compantes

Company Nume Relationship Matyee of Teanuaeiing Teansaction
Tranwaction A Ao
22233 i

Mithamal Dswaray ciesd Nt xmd transiors w/{Trom) Plastics
A e g Bubaxhory .
ehing (vt g 2

Faues the Conpay setlsd N

BLL saided o e Company

IR

Purehuses from Mitkamal Limited

roukt fewse rentals paed to Widkmesd Limited

1

Purchioses of Captal Goods from Nitkamat India

LTI R Ty 5 e . 3051
~itkasal Limited Parent Frdity Lxports s Nithamad fondia

Rovalty charged by Nelkamal Luwited
il dividend Cor 20200 ¢

ered 21723

Fivst Intersy o

wsihors Ceylon Purchsses 4650
[Sid%e! i;iu Seltlenwniy /
" 2%m Bers Ceylon Pugehases

oS Selmnons

Cinod Vidue ¥

Parchases
.

Seithancnms
PR
; iy
wilueneed by KAl

sondg Value Bswaran (Pl
d - Crane

hoses

Seftlemiems

. and thwir close

Linod Valie Eswaran ‘.m\" e ;N Purelinses

: fnily wmbers
World \M\’“{l’ Aplad SRR g enlemants
(}m‘x'i ‘\' :s‘hzv »:.’\'\‘\ §¥j§i§ Purchases
Workd Wale (PR LAG ~
Lo Homueny
Crasond Value Eswaran Parchases

e NELs S
AWorld Whde (v} Lid - Seitfernenis
Crat
Nutkarnal Crates and s Purchages QLIRS
Amounts Gue lo and due From related companies are diselosed in Note 22 and 16 respeatively, sablon 1o aud recesva &

s disclosed i Nete 31

04 duted 21 Novedy 3 for banking fasthies made available o the

wioial Bank of Ceylon PLE.

W Im p'«mw/z a Lorparate Uhrarmee for B 10,000

{17y Lad by Cow




FARAN PLASTICS(FYE LTD

NG it& THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the

seny ended 31 Muarch 2023

W Financiad Risk Masagemend
Grverview
The Group has exposure 1o the following risks from its use of fipancial instruments:
Lo Creditnsk
20 Ligmdity risk
300 Makerrisk
4. Operationd sk,
This note prescrds nformatinn abeul the Growp's exposuia w eash of thy above ssks, tw Giroup's objretives. pohicies aud prawe it
ag sand g s and the Group's monagement of capital, Further quantitative disclasures ws zciisd«;d %%u’wmgimui st
fnunaial statement
Rish Manzgewent Framowark
Pos Hoard of Dteectons has overall responsibility for the establishraent and wversight of the Group's nsk wimagereens Wans: The
Bowrd 18 regponsible for ¢ u\s,h)pmg and monitesing e Group's dsk management policies,
The Group's visk maog divies are c~:s=§iﬂ§<h:- i 0 x:!smii}' and analvze the 1isks faoed by the Group. 1o suta p’u;m te sink s
miols, and 0 mandor L managemend polivies and systems ane roviewad 1 sk e
onditions and e Group” 3 it iradning aod managesunt stadisrds and p{mwin{' s 1o develop
KHVE Costrol envirennrnt W alf emplovees understand thite rofes and obligations,
il to mwor 8 conm
stiong, anpd arfees privwipally Fom the (;mm £ w«\‘:xiﬁg\ ot ¢
alents,
tie Group fades with owa disiibutors with bank puarantee and trades manivum up 2o the guaanies value
bastinees are wonftored on an ougeing basis with Uie rosud that the Group's exposre to bad debis [IERRTIELAD
cquivatents sre Behd with bankes wineh huve good ratings based on Vit ratings,
2851 Credit Risk Bxposure and Maoaging the Risk
The varrying smount of lnancal asscis repeesents the maximun credit exposure. The masimum esposwe o erudin risk an the repon
date was a3 {ollaws;
Giroup Campany
s at 34 Mareh, 423 2022
s, Hs,
e and ol wesfvables 618,038 200,127 918
di & ¢ pivalents SB1828.514
TET U832

Ligutdity Hisk

aetated with gz nanesd dat

quidigy 1

i e risk that the Grous will socsunier dithiasity in mecting the oblipations w
s the Liroup s approash 0 managing Hewidiy s o onsare. s e as povsible,

settfed by delivering casho or another financiad «

ahways Bunve sufticient Hauidity 1o wwet s Habilities when due, wveder boeth normal and st 4 conditiony, iy ety
stwoceptable fusses or tisking damage w the Growy's repaitution,

[
B



NHLRAMAL ESWAR,
NOFPRS TOVHE FINAT

Far the yenr euded 31 Marel 2023
28 Finnaeial Risk Menagement {Cond)
282 Liguidity Risk {Coent)
Mnturity Anabysis
The wble befow summarizes the materity profile of the Group's finanetl Hubibities bused on vontractual undiscounted payments,
Lppugp
A3 i 37 March 2023 Within Between -2 Move than 2 Tatal

Year Yeurs Years
Fos. Ry, R, L

& ather puvables ELRULS

4 panty pavables

A 37 Mared 2027 Within | fietween 1-2 Mo than 2 Tatal
Year Years Years

s, s, Hs, s,

Teadde & other pryables 34T B8 596 - -
sadated parly pave G0N -
414,755,812 . -
Compaay
v 31 Mavelh 2023 Within 1 Retwien §-2 Moo than 2 Tt
B ear Yeuis Yoy
s, s, s, HEN

Vragde & othier paval

q

1.724.8 . . i 2
46,971,993 B . 46, 971993

Redawd pany pavables

Ay ¥ Muech 2932 AWithin } Between 1-1 More than 2 Total
Year Vgurn Years
Hs, ia. K. i,
Trade & othr pavables 338,00

606,800,416 - -

FUA701,738 -

Ralated party pavables

283 Blariet Risk

Murket risk {3 the risk thut changes in market prics, such s foreign exchange yotes, ilerest s andd equity prices »

RSHTLE S AR

iy ineome o the value of #1ts holding

risk exposties within aveepiable paramotars, while optimizing the reiur,

of finnnciad wstruments. The olgective of miarket visk nianag

28,58 Covreney Hisk

w5 the risk that the value of o fnancial instrument wifl fuctuate duc to changes Gy foreign exchange ntes

Cunveney 1

to foreizn ooy rish arising uaindy from Torelgn ey Gerominated 1 i currency siher i

carrencies of Company, The cusncies iy which thess ansactions primaly are denonsipaed i USLL

(3
=



SELKABMAL ESWARAN PLASTICS (PYVTY LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Far the pear ended 37 Muaech 20323

I Fisancial Risk Management {Cunl)
28.3 Slarket Risk (Coat)
28,30 Corrency Bisk {Cant

The Company’s exposure to forcign curreney 1isk 13 as follows:
Group Campany

Converted 2o Lonveried 0

Ao 2F 3 . 5 i% hPeY & -
As af 37 Moyl 2023 Usn LKR frn
Related Party recetvabies - - . .
Trade payabdes-Othe . . .
Trade pavables-refated paty - p .

Converted to Canverted tn
As March 222 LS
As ug 3F March 20 Ush LR 41 KR

Related Party wecetvables
.
H

sadde vy ables-Othe (237,976,345
2L,766447)

G611 (258,742,750)

Tradle pavables

elmod party

(284,742,790

{rv respeet of other moseluy assols spd b
{

seling foreign cwrenc

ahitities denuminated in Torcign carrencivs, the Company enswes that ils nes exposure ss Ropt
sary Yo adideoss short-wrr imbalan

a% spot ratey wihen nete

an pcveplable Jeved by buying or

28.3.2 futerest Rate Risk
Interest rate pisk s the risk fo the Compuny’s comings smd ceonomic vilue of equity (U

boarishng om adverse mevemoms i

T §

Stanagentent of tntevest Rate Risk
iy b antharitivs appointed by ihe Bound o

e Coupn fnvestmest d
frirectons and they are advised aad guided only to fnvest i seonred and regulated vestnen shurees.

fans i inesest

28,521 bxposure to Inferest Rutes Risk

Azt I Marel,

Cast aind Cash Fpovalens

Cumpany

tonad sk s the g x ¢ B wd with the Conyrans

Tl

personiiel, wohinotogy and intkasinucture, wnd from extennat fetors other thau credit, markel and fuiddity risks

such as

puuiory reqaitemenis asd geaerally accepted standurds of corporate behavt

tepal and ve
oy s speniions

The prssary responsibiliy for de development and imploneniation of conwols fo addross operational b & assaal 1o Rans
agenent williie cach business unle This responsibility is supported by the dovelapment of ovenll Conepany steadards (G the

genient of operationad risk fn the following weas:

5,

- Reguitaments fir appropriate segregation of duties, including the fndependent mnhorization of ransacuons,

Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of ransactions.

- Resgprentents Tor Uie repuning of eperational losses and proposed remedial scimg,

< brevelopment of contingeney plans.

< Fraining and profissional development.

hival and business sandands,
fachuding insarance when this is effective.

< sk mihigal
- Compance with repulatory and other lepal requiremenis,




NILEAMAL ESWARAN PLASTIUS (PVI LD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 37 March 2023
29 Fair volaes of financial instrnends

The Gy valves of finarial
fodlows

sets and Habilities, wpether with the varrving amoutts shown in the s

As ar 3§ March, 2023 2022
Carvying o Careying .
YR Falr value AN Fatr vadue
Grrespgy amanit Ao
e, R, s, HAH

Finnneint assets w1 amoriised cost

atenent of financial position, are as

Trade anid other receivables 136,61 R 3% 136,618,639 ’{30,!2? 918
Cash and cash cguwivalonts 34,008,652 390,006,652 R 2 i
526,718,201 816,715,291 53,432
Fingnoial Hebilities a1 amordsed enst
Trade and ather pavables 40509279 40,904 279 ;
fokated party payables 1728546 1,728,540 66,8004 18
42,637.826 42,637,826 414,789,812

Cpmpany

Fingngial assels af amartised cost

e und othur receivabl A2, 81371 FA2B13.710
Casly and cash equivaloats RERR YV Y 188487217
488,300,927 488,300,927

FEGAGT 2T

Fiaaneial Habifites al wimartised cost

Veade wnd othor pa 43446 243,346
Ralassd pony payahles NELREL {728,546
46,971,993 ~'§(h() 71993

¥

Ul setheds aud @ssumptions weed o vstimate the fadr values of g Biaecial instroments ae s foliows:

shoand cash equivalents ~ The carnvdag amount of vash aud cash cqgsivalents approximte ils i valoe dur o i
seatarity ol the Bnancial mstrenmwats.

EIRW

23 Veads

« and pliter tfecefvables, Related party reccivables, Lease sneditors, Trade and other paysblos. fehnud party pavablos and Bo

s aud liabilines spproximate is &y value due 1o the relatvels

By

averdesil - The carrving amount of ";;u iy

firatial Instam

i Comparative Figures
Whao

reiessiary, canprative figures have b rearranged to confomm wtls the sarrent yaug's preseilation.

3 Bvesss Aftey the Reportdng Date

Phise were no material eventy ocouizing afies the reporting dale that requite adjustments wor disclesure m the R ES

[
k.

Buard of Biveetor's Responsihility for Finnoeial Reporting
P Bourd of Dhreciors s

wifle for the prepuration and presentation of these Financial Statemenss i aceardance wit
I St"nma‘ds for sl and medinmesized eusitios laid down by the Tmstitge of Uhartered Avcoantants of
Crmpatiies At No, 7 of 2007,

fon msturiy of the



HILRAMAL ESWARAN PLASTHOS PV LTD
DETAILED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Company
For tee yeor gppded 37 Muarcli, 2823 202%
HEN s,

Revenue 519,394 851 FAaB 87 30
ot ofsales (500,188,737 (50589175,
Cirans Prafit 319,214,428 4128700722
Cthor ingorme SR87.744 SN-CYR B
Adininiratve pxpepses (94,755,2886% [ERII{ERII A

Uristribution expisss (118.389.5843

Pealit from Opevations 115,950,997 PRI SII8.7O5




NILKASIAL ESWARAN PLASTICE (PVT LD
DETAILED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSE

Contpany

For the yeue oinded 38 Mtarcd, W% pith o

frapert Reduted Jixpenses
Pureluse MB Crates « {lmpons)
e M Fassiture « (Tmpor) [2.007 912
13 Fuorndtere - {Locald .
Purchase Packing Material-{uport}

Purchiage Packing Material - (Local) 4,993,159
Purchase RM - Crates Gmpoits) PR
Purchise KM « Farniture (Jmpuris) pRIMSER LY
Py & RMFyrmiucetfocal]

Purchase KM Crate - fLocaly

Purchuse - S T
o Fadwic xiz(m Sateriad

mished Gouds

fpont
Burchase SFG tupot (55
I8S Prodocts Expences :
Fabrie 196503
hR

srebwae
“\J;mti'iz\i
ishod Goods - Urnes

i Transut

ipensed 4 i?,& i (,nﬁ Y

Provision (or Slewmoving Stocks

Alewanos far Beaa Hours - Factory

cave Dacashoent ~ Production

Annual i
Apendance Allowancs - Faciory

s« Fanion (1400008

tmy shhovaie - Faudory

ke tottdds

Prepn on Furtdture Moukds
i

Pep's nn 085 Mould

i
Dep'n on Plant, Machi & Bauip 3.3

groon Urates

< Yactory
G- Favtory
augsumables

& %w‘x 1 Allowanee - Fatore

& rrmtwv FRLSY
g on Purchases :
sfeal/BBun - Factery
S0 iid i.,,,g
Shit \iimx‘mw - Fasory

7AR8.570

B ;*,Um*rxw rdaintenan R, 223,800

CWages « Faotory
inting ~ Lraes

HUTHIN

AHgwance - ii':mfzr};
Allowanoe - Fastory




KILKAMALE

WARAN PLASTIC
DETAILED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Far the year ended 31 Mureh,

CORT OF SALES {Cont)
Weer Bl Expens
Fowder Coating Chagres
Produchion Taeentive

g

ADMIMISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Aot mdmmn « Crate
Accomodations
Annual Leave Encashment - Admin
Audis - Externad

AudieInternal
Hw s~ ifice

5 & Perindicals
ATy /\iit‘)\\';‘? 1cg-Adnin

ity & i)um tons
pder Conswmables

B

eprecigtion on Other Fixed Assels
Cost of Living Altowan

PE 1 29%-Ollice

Food allewimee - Adniin
Foreign Traveliug ©

« Furniiwe
seakes - Furniluee

Travelling

o

ST §ﬂ«;‘*\‘£l«\$

al & Consultaney Fees

: -.xpm-scs
(Hlice ‘,mzﬁmmn'\'a

0O
!”‘é’)z;‘am_,, Stamyp 4 i’)lil'i(‘f
Pringing & Statlonery

§ ates & Taxes

slaries - Administradon

o~

Keor *u;mi Fees

i ‘;l A il(st\’:m’\ic « Admin

Siaft Welfare - Crate
; fare - Fabricaied

fephone & Fax
slowance Admin

- e
- Furniture

“ontuiner Washing & Cleaning Chygs.

it

Company
2023 2622
s, RS

275839
1,048,036

723275 836,500
1,574,432 L2 KM

861,500 ¢
(490,000} 719,767
20,670
136,167
419,901
214,190

PHO08
339
60,068

L BAG 8T
2657300

B8,160

554,871
£.140,000 12708
467,023
(,534,603 Y



NULEAMAL ESWARAN PLASTICS (PVT) LTD
DETAILLD STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
Company
For die year epded 31 Maech, 2023 222

Ks. Hx,
ARMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Cont)
Lawyer Fee for Cowt Case Furniture . 9, Lm(}
Lawyer Fee for Cowt Case Sofa ; ;

Pavroll Outsourcing Fee 18,463
Postage, Stamp & Cowrfer - Crate -
Seminar & Training - Furniture 161,038
;«'7i2§ Warranty Provision Charge .
ii Recruiument By - Crate 4,800
Stall Reoruitment Bx - Furaiture 54,810
Pab & Phone Repair 14530635

S0, 785,248

DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Advertising Expenses « Purniture A1260
idud De I s Account - Furiiure {G82, 184
(663,006
£045 f)x)‘),

s - rple 170478

ses - Fabricated 940

- Furniture

< {iate

3(1&1.\\ 3\ ente ,\ziil;‘?’é

Orvertime-Sales

-

Promotions of Urates

es lucentives - Crat

des Inewmives - Fumnbure
Special Allowince-Crate

dal allowance-Sales

eader Expences

ender Expenoes - Craie
sport Charges - Crates

\m\;w ¢ Chorges - Fumitare

Praveling Allowance - Sales
i

Teavelling '\i!o wance~Urate

5

WA

VAT on Sample Issues - Crate
AT on Smmple fssues - Furndiore




MILIKAMAL ESWARAN PLASTICS (BVTILTD
DETAILED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the vear ended 31 March,

BISTRIBUTION EXPENSES (Cont)
Annual Leave Eacashnient - Crate
Anmmml Leave Encashment -5 & D
Budgetary Allowance - Sales
Budgetary Relief Allowance - Crage
Daray Sales Commission

House Rent Allowance - Crate
Online Courier Chagres

Cnsline Sales Commission
”mnmi!m* & Bvents - 088

of San HHER

; lm,x nifves - (”)‘xf\,

< lncentives « Sofa

Sales Inceulbves-Institutional

Satlement I)lsamsm {16 w0 30 Doy 1%
settiement Discounts Hmmediately 2%

Settlenent Disconats (lzmm diately -3 5%
; 34

4
i24

O i} isconns {nnwediately )-
soounis ~US§> -5%

010-2.5%

.'m.:iz%ccr;sf'n Dscounds <Sofa-59%
af Securiy Contribution Levy AC

i ransport Uharges - Fabricated

st f‘m-“‘ax SRS

- Powdey Coating & Other
- Safy

I pc wes Crate
,m(;{f L,M alned VAT - 12
abned VAT - 1

1<

b
wli
Writien t}lf I nc%; fimed VA i‘ - 1 8% - \.)f"?
Weitten G Unelain N% VAT - §%- Crale
ten Q07 Unclaing :\f ~ &%« Fub
e O Lineladis & AT - 8% Fuy
Yritea Off Unelaimed \’ VI 8% Sofa

suh totsd
wi:ai distribution expense

Ceompany

2023
Rs

1231,578
£ 448,607
81.101
90,000
{48,442
78,000

8,462

27788

299382
27.956
1,184,996
91444 3 it
2,18

45, Ui(?
264,109
6,492 990
528116
1,043,876
101,600
ER R R
450,070
624,000

3‘)(; 2 1 s
,i)i‘n‘sy.a“ )

{1y %4 1
40,6540
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